Jagayn g

The Bright Star Of
Central Texas

June 8, 2021
5:00 P.M.

CITY COUNCIL

MEETING AGENDA




Harl(e NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF

The Bright Star Of
Central Texas

The City of Harker Heights
305 Miller’s Crossing

Harker Heights, Texas 76548
Phone 254/953-5600

Fax 254/953-5614

Mayor
Spencer H. Smith

Mayor Protem
Michael Blomquist

City Council

Jennifer McCann

Jackeline Soriano Fountain
Lynda Nash

Jody Nicholas

VL

VIIL.

VIII

THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS

Notice is hereby given that, beginning at 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, June 8, 2021, and
continuing from day to day thereafter if necessary, the City Council of the City of
Harker Heights, Texas, will hold a meeting in the Kitty Young Council Chamber at 305
Miller’s Crossing, Harker Heights, Texas 76548. The subjects to be discussed are listed
in the following agenda:

MEETING AGENDA

I Invocation:
II. Pledge of Allegiance:

I Pledge Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America and to the Republic for
which it stands, one nation under God, indivisible, with liberty and justice for all.

Honor the Texas Flag. I pledge allegiance to thee Texas; one state under God, one and
indivisible.

II1. Roll Call:
Iv. Mayoral Proclamations and Presentations:
Consent Items:

Discuss and consider approving the minutes of the meeting held on May 25, 2021, and
take the appropriate action.

Presentations by Citizens:

Receive a presentation by Thomas A. Mizera regarding the promotion of Tennis
programs city-wide, future exposure, program funding, and revitalization of said sport.

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may do so during this item.
Please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your comments, State law
(Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1) engaging in discussion other than
providing a statement of specific factual information or reciting existing City policy, and
(2) taking action other than directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. Please
state your name and address for the record and limit your comments to three minutes.

Public Hearings:

Old Business:



New Business:

Discuss and consider approving a request for Preliminary Plat approval for the
subdivision referred to as The Enclave at Indian Trail, on property described as a 16.92
acre tract of land situated in the W. E. Hall Survey, Abstract No. 1086, and the J. M.
Roberts Survey, Abstract No. 3, and being all of the Called 2.980 acre tract of land
described in a Deed to Terra Azul Developments, LLC., recorded in Instrument No.
201300048431, Deed Records of Bell County, Texas, all of the Called 7.971 acre tract
of land described in a Deed to Terra Azul Developments, LLC., recorded in Instrument
No. 201300048422, Deed Records of Bell County, Texas, all of the “Parcel 1” Called
3.003 acre tract of land described in a Deed to Terra Azul Developments, LLC.,
recorded in Instrument No. 201300048429, Deed Records of Bell County, Texas, all of
the “Parcel 2” Called 2.649 acre tract of land described in a Deed to Terra Azul
Developments, LLC., recorded in Instrument No. 201300048429, Deed Records of Bell
County, Texas, and a part of Lot 1, Block 1, Pat Kern Subdivision, Recorded in Cabinet
D, Slide 185-A, Plat Records of Bell County, Texas, generally located east of Indian
Trail (FM 3423) directly behind Harker Heights Central Fire Station, Harker Heights,
Bell County, Texas, and take the appropriate action. (Planning and Development
Director)

Discuss and consider approving the waiver of interest on liens in the amount of
$5,389.37 on property known as 1416 Shoshoni Trail, Harker Heights, Bell County,
Texas, and take the appropriate action. (City Manager)

Discuss and consider approving an economic development incentive agreement with
Gambit Social House, Inc. (“Gambit”) for the administration of one or more programs
for making grants or loans of public money to promote economic development and
stimulate business and commercial activities within the City; and authorize the City
Manager to sign the agreement on behalf of the City and take the appropriate action.
(City Manager)

Discuss and consider approving the City Manager to sign the Updated Bell County
Communications Center 9-1-1 Agreement and take the appropriate action. (City
Manager)

Discuss and consider approving a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Harker
Heights, Texas, creating the Capital Improvements Advisory Committee and setting
forth the rules for and the duties thereof, all in compliance with the Impact Fee Statutes
found in Chapter 395 of the Local Government Code and take the appropriate action.
(Public Works Director)

Reports of Advisory Boards & Commissions:

Items from Council:

Staff Reports:
Receive and discuss the City Manager’s Report. (City Manager)

Announcements:



XIV. Adjournment:

I hereby certify that the above notice of meeting was posted on the bulletin board of City Hall, City of
Harker Heights, Texas, a place readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the 4™ day of
June 2021, by 4:00 p.m., and remained posted for at least 72 continuous hours preceding the
scheduled time of said meeting.

Julie Helsham
City Secretary

“This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for
accommodations or interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact
the City Secretary’s office at 254-953-5600, or FAX 254-953-5614, or email
Jhelsham(@harkerheights.gov for further information.”

“Pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Government Code the City Council reserves the right to go into
Closed Meeting on any item listed above if deemed necessary.”

The public may listen to live-stream audio of this meeting by dialing-in using the toll-free
number: United States (Toll Free): 1-866-899-4679 and use Access Code: 297-785-405

Or join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone, use the following meeting link:
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/297785405




Minutes of the of the City Council meeting held at 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, May 25, 2021, by a telephonic meeting
to contain the spread of COVID-19 in accordance with Governor Abbott’s declaration of the COVID-19 public
health threat and action to temporarily suspend certain provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act issued on
March 16, 2020:

Roll Call: Spencer H. Smith Mayor

Michael Blomquist Mayor Pro-tem
Jennifer McCann Councilmember Place 1
Jackeline Soriano Fountain Councilmember Place 3
Lynda Nash Councilmember Place 4
Jody Nicholas Councilmember Place 5
David Mitchell City Manager

Julie Helsham City Secretary

Mayoral Proclamations and Presentations:

1.

Mayor Smith presented a Proclamation to the Harker Heights High School Key Club declaring them a
“Bright Star of Central Texas”.

Mayor Smith presented a Proclamation to the Harker Heights High School Interact Club declaring them a
“Bright Star of Central Texas”.

Harker Heights Municipal Court Judge Billy Ray Hall, Jr. administered the Oath of Office to former Teen
Court volunteer Jordan Pender as a new Lawyer to practice law in the State of Texas.

Consent Items:

1.

Council discussed and considered approving the minutes of the meetings held on May 11, 2021, and May
18, 2021. Fountain made the motion to approve as written. Seconded by McCann. All in favor. Motion
approved 5-0.

Council discussed and considered approving an Ordinance of the City of Harker Heights, Texas,
amending Ordinance 2020-06 of the Harker Heights Code to extend the COVID-19 Public Health
Emergency Declaration through July 3, 2021. Blomquist made the motion to approve. Seconded by
McCann. All in favor. Motion approved 5-0.

Council discussed and considered approving an Ordinance of the City of Harker Heights, Texas,
amending Ordinance 2021-08 of the Harker Heights Code to extend the Winter Storm State of Disaster
Emergency Declaration through June 30, 2021. Blomquist made the motion to approve. Seconded by
Nash. All in favor. Motion approved 5-0.

New Business:

1.

Council discussed and considered approving a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Harker
Heights, Texas, authorizing the City Manager to sign a Non-Binding Letter of Intent expressing the
intention to purchase a Rosenbauer Cobra Commander Chassis Aerial Ladder Truck. Paul Sims, Fire
Chief, made the presentation. Nicholas made the motion to approve. Seconded by Fountain. All in favor.
Motion approved 5-0.

Council discussed and considered approving a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Harker
Heights, Texas, authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and sign a contract for Public Drainage
Easement Acquisition with Stateside Right of Way Services, LLC. for the Drainage Master Plan Capital
Improvement Project No.2, Phase 2, 3, and 4. Mark Hyde, Public Works Director, made the presentation.
Fountain made the motion to approve. Seconded by Nash. All in favor. Motion approved 5-0.



Closed Meeting:
1. At 5:47 p.m. the Mayor announced a closed meeting for the following purposes:

(A)  Pursuant to Government Code §551.087, to deliberate the offer of a financial or other
incentive to a business prospect that the City Council seeks to have locate, stay, or
expand in or near the territory of the City, and with which the City Council is conducting
economic development negotiations, fo wit: 380 Agreement.

Mayor Smith reconvened the Regular Meeting at 6:20 p.m.

Reconvene Open Meeting:

1. Discuss and consider approving an Economic Development 380 Agreement with ABC Corporation.
The Mayor passed on Item XI-1 and moved to Item XII. No action was taken on Item XI-1.

Reports of Advisory Boards & Commissions:

1. Council received and discussed a presentation by Shiloh Wester, Animal Advisory Committee Member,
regarding an Annual Update on the Animal Advisory Committee Activities in 2020. Shiloh Wester, Pet
Adoption Center Manager, made the presentation. No action taken.

Items from Council:

Mayor Pro-tem Blomquist stated that he attended the following events:
e May 22" - Harker Heights Pet Adoption Center “Kitten Shower” at the Harker Heights Activities
Center
e May 15" and 22" — Harker Heights Farmers’ Market
e May 22" — Texas A&M Graduation Celebration at Carl Levin Park

Councilmember Fountain stated that she attended the following events:
e May 20" — 48 Chemical Brigade Change of Command Ceremony
May 21% — 3" Cavalry Regiment’s Garden Party
May 21% — Fort Hood Retirement Ceremony
May 25" — Fort Hood VIP Day event

Councilmember Nash stated that she attended the following events:
e May 12" — Hill Country Transit Board Meeting
e May 22" — Employment Fair at the E-Center

Staff Reports:

1. Council received and discussed the City Manager’s Report. David Mitchell, City Manager, made the
presentation. No action taken.

Announcements:

Mayor Smith stated that he attended the following events:

e May 12" — Harker Heights Chamber of Commerce Banquet and Awards Celebration at the La Rio
Mansion, Belton

e May [3% — Farewell meeting with Major General Gerald M. Strickland, British Army, III Corps Deputy
Commanding General
May 14% — III Corps Phantom Honors Award Ceremony for Major General and Mrs. Strickland
May 14® — III Corps Phantom Honors Farewell and Welcome Ceremony for Major General and Mrs.
Strickland and Major General and Mrs. Keating



e May 14" — Fort Hood Garrison and Community Farewell Dinner for Colonel Jason Wesbrock at Club
Hood
May 17" — Pet Adoption Center Meeting at Harker Heights City Hall
May 18" — Harker Heights City Council Meeting, Workshop, and Cyber Security Training
May 19" — Killeen Temple Metropolitan Planning Organization, Transportation Policy Planning Board
Virtual Meeting
May 20" — 3" Cavalry Regiment Birthday Bash at First Army Division West Field
May 21% - III Corps Phantom Honors Ceremony for Fort Hood Retirees at Club Hood
May 21% — Policy meeting with City Staff at Harker Heights City Hall

Adjournment:

There being no further business the City of Harker Heights City Council Meeting was adjourned at 6:40 p.m.

CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS:

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor
ATTEST:

Julie Helsham, City Secretary



REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE CITY COUNCIL

For Items Not Previously Posted on the City Council Agenda
Submit to: City Secretary

Email: jhelsham@harkerheights.gov

Fax: 254-953-5614

Location: City Hall, 305 Miller’s Crossing, Harker Heights, TX 76548
Phone: 254-953-5600

NAME: Thomas Albert Mizera

ADDRESS: 2024 Herald Dr. Harker Heights TX 76548

PHONE: *806) 407.2002

E-MAIL: Mizera.Thomas@Gmail.com

SUBJECT TO ADDRESS:

Promotion of Tennis programs city-wide. future exposure, program funding, and revitalization of said
sport.

MEETING DATE YOU WISH TO SPEAK: 06/08/21 If able to otherwise 6/10/2021

This request is due to the City Secretary’s Office by noon on the Wednesday prior to the Council
Meeting. You will be given three minutes to address the City Council Members. No action can be taken. |
understand that | must limit my comments to the subject listed. | will also refrain from the use of any

obscene, vulgar, or profane language. | understand that if I do not follow this procedure, my speaking
time may be terminated.

SIGNATURE: Thomas A. Mizera

DATE: 06/03/2021

(TO BE COMPLETED BY THE CITY SECRETARY)
Date Received: (» { 3 [ZD?.\
(2:50 p.m Time

Received: \JLW L'S‘Q‘?-L‘m




Hark

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
“ Hei ts

P21-15 AGENDA ITEM# IX-1

FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER DATE: JUNE 8, 2021

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING A REQUEST FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT
APPROVAL FOR THE SUBDIVISION REFERRED TO AS THE ENCLAVE AT
INDIAN TRAIL, ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS A 16.92 ACRE TRACT OF LAND
SITUATED IN THE W. E. HALL SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 1086, AND THE J. M.
ROBERTS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 3, AND BEING ALL OF THE CALLED 2.980
ACRE _TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO TERRA AZUL
DEVELOPMENTS, LLC., RECORDED IN INSTRUMENT NO. 201300048431, DEED
RECORDS OF BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, ALL OF THE CALLED 7.971 ACRE TRACT
OF _LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO TERRA AZUL DEVELOPMENTS, LLC.,
RECORDED IN INSTRUMENT NO. 201300048422, DEED RECORDS OF BELL
COUNTY, TEXAS, ALL OF THE “PARCEL 1” CALLED 3.003 ACRE TRACT OF
LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO TERRA AZUL DEVELOPMENTS, LLC.,
RECORDED IN INSTRUMENT NO. 201300048429, DEED RECORDS OF BELL
COUNTY, TEXAS, ALL OF THE “PARCEL 2” CALLED 2.649 ACRE TRACT OF
LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO TERRA AZUL DEVELOPMENTS, LLC.,
RECORDED IN INSTRUMENT NO. 201300048429, DEED RECORDS OF BELL
COUNTY, TEXAS, AND A PART OF LOT 1, BLOCK 1, PAT KERN SUBDIVISION,
RECORDED IN CABINET D, SLIDE 185-A, PLAT RECORDS OF BELL COUNTY,
TEXAS, GENERALLY LOCATED EAST OF INDIAN TRAIL (FM 3423) DIRECTLY
BEHIND HARKER HEIGHTS CENTRAL FIRE STATION, HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL
COUNTY, TEXAS.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

The applicant submitted an application for preliminary plat approval for approximately 16.92
acres of vacant land just east of Indian Trail. The proposed development will consist of 37
residential duplex lots which is one more lot than presented in the Concept Plan. As illustrated
within the development’s approved Concept Plan — The Village at Nolan Heights (CP21-03)
approved by City Council on March 9, 2021, and stipulated within the approved PD-R (Planned
Development Residential District) also approved on March 9, 2021, the plat must conform to an
additional 18 conditions per ordinance 2021-09 (see attached).

Staff has reviewed the submitted preliminary plat and engineering plans and have made
comments to address safety, drainage, water and wastewater utilities and other pertinent
requirements to ensure that all developmental regulations stipulated in the City of Harker
Heights Code of Ordinances will be adhered to.

Page 1 of 3



STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

As of May 18, 2021, the applicant had adequately addressed a majority of staff’s comments. The
outstanding staff comments can be addressed during the construction plan and final plat process.
Staff therefore recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat for the subdivision referred to as
The Enclave at Indian Trail.

ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION:

During the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting held on May 26, 2021, the Planning and
Zoning Commission voted (7-0) to approve a Preliminary Plat for the subdivision referred to as
The Enclave at Indian Trail, on property described as a 16.92 acre tract of land situated in the W.
E. Hall Survey, Abstract No. 1086, and the J. M. Roberts Survey, Abstract No. 3, and being all
of the called 2.980 acre tract of land described in a deed to Terra Azul Developments, LLC.,
recorded in Instrument No. 201300048431, Deed Records of Bell County, Texas, all of the called
7.971 acre tract of land described in a deed to Terra Azul Developments, LLC., recorded in
Instrument No. 201300048422, Deed Records of Bell County, Texas, all of the “Parcel 1” called
3.003 acre tract of land described in a deed to Terra Azul Developments, LLC., recorded in
Instrument No. 201300048429, Deed Records of Bell County, Texas, all of the “Parcel 2” called
2.649 acre tract of land described in a deed to Terra Azul Developments, LLC., recorded in
Instrument No. 201300048429, Deed Records of Bell County, Texas, and a part of Lot 1, Block
1, Pat Kern Subdivision, recorded in Cabinet D, Slide 185-A, Plat Records of Bell County,
Texas, generally located East of Indian Trail (FM 3423) directly behind Harker Heights Central
Fire Station, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas.

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL.:

1. Motion to Approve, Approve with Conditions, or Disapprove with Explanation a
request for Preliminary Plat approval for the subdivision referred to as The Enclave at

Indian Trail, on property described as a 16.92 acre tract of land situated in the W. E. Hall
Survey, Abstract No. 1086, and the J. M. Roberts Survey, Abstract No. 3, and being all of
the called 2.980 acre tract of land described in a deed to Terra Azul Developments, LLC.,
recorded in Instrument No. 201300048431, Deed Records of Bell County, Texas, all of
the called 7.971 acre tract of land described in a deed to Terra Azul Developments, LLC.,
recorded in Instrument No. 201300048422, Deed Records of Bell County, Texas, all of
the “Parcel 1” called 3.003 acre tract of land described in a deed to Terra Azul
Developments, LLC., recorded in Instrument No. 201300048429, Deed Records of Bell
County, Texas, all of the “Parcel 2” called 2.649 acre tract of land described in a deed to
Terra Azul Developments, LLC., recorded in Instrument No. 201300048429, Deed
Records of Bell County, Texas, and a part of Lot 1, Block 1, Pat Kern Subdivision,
recorded in Cabinet D, Slide 185-A, Plat Records of Bell County, Texas, generally
located East of Indian Trail (FM 3423) directly behind Harker Heights Central Fire
Station, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas.

2. Any other action desired.

Page 2 of 3



ATTACHMENTS:

Application

The Enclave at Indian Trail - Preliminary Plat

The Enclave at Indian Trail - Preliminary Engineering Documents

Ordinance 2021-09 (PD-R zoning with Conditions, Approved March 9, 2021)

The Enclave at Indian Trail — Concept Plan (Approved on March 9, 2021)

Location Map

Staff Comments with Responses (Sent 05/05/21 & 5/14/21, Response 05/10/21 & 5/18/21)

Nowmiswbh =

Page 3 of 3



Preliminary Plat Application

r * Reguirements - APPLICATION MUST BE FULLY COMPLETED OR WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED®
This epplication must be completed returned to the Development Departmant of the
City of Harker Helghts, Texas sfong with the foflowlng:
o - 1. Pre-Applicetion Mesting with Staff to snsure appilcabitity
City of Harker Heights 2. Payment of S500.00 + $25/per lot
PW';'B&MW 3. Signed Criginal Field Notes end Dedication Pages
305 Willers Crossing 4. Puper Plan Submissions: Ten {10) Coples of the Plat and Seven (7} Copies of Preliminary Enginsering Drawings
Harker Heights, TX 76548 3. Hloctronic Submission of all documents for review delivared te Plonning Admisistrative Assistant
Phone: {25€) 953-5647
Fax [258) 953-5666

Property information:

Plat Name: The Enclave

Date Submitted: 4/28/2021
Existing Lot Count:)

Proposed Lot Count:38 Proposed Units: 0 Acreage: 17.08
Existing Land Use: Vacant/Agriculture

Proposed Land Use: Duplex
Site Address or General Location: East side of Indian Trail just north of Clore Rd.
Public Infrastructure Proposed with Subdivision: [ Water

Owner Information & Authorization:

X wWastewater X Swests finduding Private) BE Stormwater

Property Owner:Terra Azul Developments, LLC

Address: 2501 B E Elms Dr, Killeen, Texas 76542
IR
Dewveloper: Flintrock Builders

E-Mail:

Address: 105 E FM 2410, Harker Heights, Texas 76548

Engineer/Surveyor:  Republic Engineering and Development Services
Address: P.O. Box 3123, Harker Heights, Texas 76548

Faon::

E-Mail:

CHECK ONE OF THE FOLLOWING:

[] 1 will represent the application myself.

Joseph Theriot
I hereby designate .

(name of project representative) to act in the capacity as my agent for
submittal, processing, representation, and/or presentation of this development application.

The property owner and/or their authorized representative must be present at alf Planning and Zoning Commission Meetings and City
Council Meetings at which their plan or plat is on the agenda for discussion or action. Failure of the developer or their
authorized representative to appear during a meeting may be deemed a withdrawal of the plat or plan.

-

e N e,

O(\( @JSD()\U./ ’DJDSC SWORN AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME ON THIS _%iﬁf,i:” Pué‘&o”
\ + é@l 2020 . i ‘e

i
DAY OF . 5 Y " =
Printed Name of Owner s ¢ . :s_
b = : 2
= % .. c 2 =
W = v A ¥ s =
mmnrpuaucwmomnrp@smrzorms s "fgoﬂe LI 3
COMMISSION EXPIRES: 3’5'2024 2 "% ’M'. §
Sighagdfe of Owner My ISSION EXPIRES: %, anea OOy
i g

%‘l'mumm\\“

STAFF ONLY - DO NOTFILL OUT

Date Submitted: Received By:

Receipt #:

Rev. 5/20



LEGEND

PROPERTY BOUNGARY
LOT UNES

EASEMENT LINES

DRAINAGE EASEMENT LINES
ADIOIMNG TRACT PROFERTY LINES
OFFSITE EASEMENTS

- 14102° HON PIFE FOUND.
& P HAR FOUND.
. RO FOUND Wi CAP STAMPED
WITCHELL & ASSOC, KRLEEN
M IRON KOO FOURG
a V2 IRON ROD SET W CAP
STAMPED GUNTERD 101841107

“UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED™

NOTES

1. THE BEARINGS AND DUSTANCES SHOWe MEREON ARE BASED OH THE TEXAS STATE FLANE COORDINATE
1oH,

SYSTEM, CENTRAL ZONE NAD 83 PER LEICA SMART HET GPS OBSERVATI

2 APORTION OF THIS PROPERTY LIES WWITHIN FEMA ZONE A" AS SHOWN ON THE FLOGO IRORANGE RATE MAP,
FEMA MAP 48021COI85E WHICH BEARS AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF SEFTEMBER 26,

SFEMA ZONE A" ARE DEFINED AS AREAS DETERMINED 1O HAVE BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS.**

3 THIS PROPERTY IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE CONOITIONS OUTLINED IN GROINANCE 202113,

31 LOT 1AS REFEKENCED IN OKDINANGE 702149 1S NOT PAKT OF THIS FLAT

LOT NUMBER CHANGES
PROPOSID PLAT ORDINANCE 202119
THACT 1 DRAINAGE TRACT F
TRACT 2 DRAINAGE TRACT A £
20-21, WOCK 1 [
57, MOCK 1 1

ALL UTIITY EASEMENTS SHALL BE 10.0 WADE. UTILITY EASEMENTS CONTAIMNG PROPOSED WATER AHD
SEMER INRASTRUCTUKE SHALL BE 15.0 WIDE. UNLESS OTHERWSE ROTED.

5 FANSHED FLOOR ELEVATICNS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 1 FOOT ABOVE THE AVERAGE TOP OF CURR ELEVATION
FAONTING THE LOT. LOTS 820 BLOCK 1 ANO TRACT 2 SHALL MAVE A FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION 2 FEET
ABOVE THE REGULATGAY BASE FLOCO ELEVATION (BFE) OK THE | FOOT ABOVE THE AVERAGE TOP OF CURR
ELEVATION WHICHEVER 15 HIGHER IN ELEVATION,

FOR EACH DWELLING LT, 2 OFF-STREET PARKING SPACES MUST BE PROVIDED

7. APPURTENANCES FOR DAY UTILITIES UAY B PLACED ABOVE
1H AREAS WHE v

PASSAGE EASEMENT, NO ABGVE-GROUND APPURTENANCES ARE ALLOWED.
PERMANENT CORNERS EXTERICA AND INTERIOR, SHALL 1" IROH RGO WATH A GAP MARKED "GUANTERQG
1G134110° AFTER COMPLETED CONSTRUCTION AS AUTHORIZED BY THE OEVELOPER.

8 THE S0 FOOT REAR BLALDING LINE IS OFFSET AND PARALLEL TO THE RIGHT.OFWAY

A DAANAGE EASEMENT OR

NO7° 1058 E- ‘JSB?

% 70 ROw)
S“‘

,.q- N T6'4136° W - 22453
LBy =i me:

!; WATER COURSE OR

"

CANRETD SLIOK 144

(FM 3423)

INDIAN TRAIL

Lot 1 moen s
" "

e e ———ie o

; & g
i Sqe it
m."'.‘...‘é 8y
igr\ auum—aur:-zm,
;"' S76° 41 36°E - 234 78

(DEED N 12° 1T 44" £+ 158 14y
N 12°16°35° E - 155 26"

Toxas TonsaLER AcCHTon

T OERONIT ey W E- 13501
N1Z0447"E- 134 nr-\ HEETY

Canral € SR A
OEEDS I 4g 4T E- 20014y ¢
5777 AT 38" E - 300 14"

T b0, FmanT

(DEED N 14" 53 55" E)
N14°5723° E - 50.5¢"

n

=
o

PLAT N 12 01 81 E- 296

N12° 05 03 E - 284 96"

-

WATER COURSE DR

[T
T

cRR

P

X

=g

5%

‘ﬁ:l

3

o5 _bre.ry
1

508
oEER S
—

PER FE!

Fou] Row

ENCLAVE BLVD_
VAR o

{DEEDN 17 6T 00 E - 63.671
N 12°04'S5°E - 6007

N 77" 49° 30" W - 200 62
(DEEQ N 77" 4% 27 W)

CEEON I G E T A
~—N12°07'08" E - 74 96"

= |
TOEED § 10° 20 09 W - 181 09}

H-F2 S 10°2137° W - 151.05'

(7288 !

/
!
/

Lan

\TE LIMITS OF 100-YEAR FLOGOPLAIN

i

!
!

— {

APPROYIMATE LIMITS GF 100-YEAR FLODDWAY
5 PANEL 48077COZ85E, WHICH BEARS
5 ANEFFECTIVE DATE OF SEFTEVBER 26, 2004

= - | a3
[—7 }“‘*-,__\r‘ 5. ]
[l

!
/

APPROXMA
PER FEMA PANEL 40027C0Z85E WHICH BEARS
ANEFFECTIVE DATE OF SEPTEMBER 26, 7008

RONOHALLLAEN B YHASE PRESENTE THAY TIERRA AZIL 7 CHROMO , LLC. BEING THE
THAT CERTAIN 16 92 ACRE TRACT GF LAND SITUATED IN THE W E_ HALL SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO, 1086, AND

THE 4.0, ROBERTS SURVEY AMSTRRET 0. 723, A BERNG AL OF THE CALLED) 2,060 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIEDIN A
RECORDS OF e —

DEED TO TERRA AZUL
TEUs NLOR DM AL TaT AR mnr.v OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A Desn O TERRA AZUL DEVELOPMENTS
RECORDE] INTY, TEXAS ALL OF THE PARCEL 1* CALI.ED apey
JCRTRACT O LG n:scum LA CEED T TERRA AZUL DEVEL OPUETS LLE. RECORDED I INSTRU
013000484 L/COUNTY. TEXAS, ALL OF THE ‘PARCE. 7 CALLED. 2645 ACRE TRAGT OF LAND
DESCRILED N A DELD 10 TERRA AT CEVELOPUAENTS LLC.. RECORDED IN INSTRUMENT KO, 701 300048429 DEED RECORDS OF
BELL COUNTY. TEXAS, AND A PART GF LOT 1 BLGCK 1, PAT KERN SUBCIVISION, RECORDED N CABINET D, SUDE 185-A, PLAT
RECOADS GF BELL COLNTY. TEXAS. WHICH IS MORE FULLY CESCRIEED IN THE DEDICATION 0F

THE PLAT HEREQF, A A MADE A PART HEREON, MK APPROVED BY THE CITY GF HARKER
RECHTE: Bt COTY. TBAS RO T DOES HEREBY DEDICATE TO SAID GITY ALL STREETS,
AVEMES. CRIVES, ALLEYS AN ORAAGE TRACTS SHEVH O SAIS AT THE SAME TO BE LSED AS PUBLIC THGROUGHFARES
ANO FOR THE INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC UTILITIES VHEN AND AS AUTHORIZED BY THE CITY OF HARKER
HEIGHTS,
THE DRAINAGE AND UTILITY EASEMENTS SHOWA ON SAIC PLAT ARE DECICATED TG SAID CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS FOR
INSTALLATIGN AN MAINTENANCE OF ANY ANO ALL PUBLIC UTILITIES. WHICH THE CITY MAY ELECT T3 INSTALL AND MAINTAIN OR
FERMT TG BE INSTALLED GR MANTAINED.
TRACT 1 AND TRACT 2 SHOWS GN SAID PLAT ARE BEING DECICATED FEE SIMPLE T0 THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS.

w2

VATNESS THE EXECUTION HEREOF. 084 THIS DAY OF

FOR TERRA AZUL DEVELOPMENTS (LG

br.
CHRISTGPHER DOOSE
MEMBER

BEFORE ME. THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY, ON THIS DAY, PERSONALLY APFEARED CHRISTOPHER DOGSE KNOWN TO ME T0 BE
[ PERSON WHOSE MAME I3 SUSSCRIBED) TO THE FOREGOMNG ISTRUMENT. IT HAS BEEN ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE

EXECUTED THE

FIOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF TEXAS
MY COMMSSION EXPIRES.

ArodnG
LANSING AND.

APPROVED THIS DAY oF o, AD.8Y THE
DEVELOPMENT CF THE CITY GF HARKER HEIGHTS. BELL COUNTY, TEXAS,

DIRECTOR GF PLANNING AND DEVELGPMENT ATTEST CITY SECRETARY

Arang ring
APPROVED THIS DAY OF n AD, BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION.
OF THE CITY GF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS,

CHAIRPERSON. PLANNING AND ZOMNG COMMISSION SECRETARY, PLANHING AND JGMNG COMMISSION

|
i CALLED © 244 ACAE (DEEDN 12 07 05" E - WA 1%)
= T WGOTHINO I b N12°0620°E - i
o =3 a2 P s |
= - WL J : | / /
] «cs ot o mex s
SRS T i MR L,
| (1 e | / / SUBVEVORS CERTIFCATE
wr CoRNER ] & | ] | BRADLEY W SARGENT DO HEREEY CERTIFY THAT AN ACTUAL AND ACCURATE SURVEY WAS MADE ON THE GROUND OF THE
| wor | I wor ] “u I PLATTED LAND. AND THAT THE CORNER T ON THE FOREGOING PLAT WERE FOUND OR PLACED IN
| | i ACCGROANCE WITH THE SUBDIISION ORDINANGE OF THE CITY OF KILLEEN. TEXAS.
ORL = e wug = | |
L S |19 ) | =
2 Py = | '
i B s | | ( }
- T | “ALASE &/ on
STREET | BUOLEY W SARGENT
r— 5 | R LS NG it
51 W STAN SCHLUETER L.
TYPICAL LOT LAYOUT | H 8 ) B
SCALE-MTS | I] ' 7/
w
! sl I 7
| 14 | V4 SURVEY: Wi E HALL SURVEY, A- 1086 OWNER TERRA AZUL DEVELOPMENT, LLC
Bh 3 4. M. ROBERTS SURVEY, A-123 2501-8 EAST ELMS RO
b
TERANS g, I El | / NUMBER OF BLOCHS 2
PROJECT ol ae v, I g2 / SURVETDR: 0 ENGINEERING, LLC
LOCATION o e 1 / NUMEER OF LOTS: a S350 v LM ACHLLTI L2,
5 £, | cr. WUMBER OF TRACTS. 2 (a54) anrasea
simoels & 2oy ¥
ad éy | TOTAL ACREAGE: 18324
é-’ oy | DATE APRL 2031
g,
Soge g'f .‘}Y ‘ TEED N OO’ 21 40 W 15087)
E"tqh | N 00" 19°34° W - 156.70"
. oo 2o PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR:
THE ENCLAVE AT INDIAN TRAIL
\ L 0 R=223.77 CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS
= zﬁ‘w \w';!o“ AL=67 87 FROECT NG
e v ¥ =67.61" 2 .
LOCATION MAP @ 11 s g;“u?f- *”’"m —ce.ssrosIW " - ENEINEERING THE ENCLAVE AT INDIAN TRAI e
) R e~ ol 4=17°2255" ! “, ey IS A PRELIMMARY PLAT SITUATED I THE CITY LRATS OF THE CIT¥ OF HARKER
Lo——" il e olieuniiaie P2




OWNER:
TERRA AZUL DEVELOPMENTS LLC
2501 B E ELMS DR
KILLEEN, TEXAS 76542

DEVELOPER:
FLINTROCK BUILDERS
105 E. FM 2410
HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS 76548

SURVEYOR:

QUINTERO ENGINEERING, LLC
P.0. BOX 4386

KILLEEN, TX 76540

ENGINEER:
REPUBLIC ENGINEERING &
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES, LLC
P.O. BOX 3123
HARKER HEIGHTS, TX 76548

ENGINEERING DRAWINGS FOR

THE ENCLAVE
HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS

21-020-001

T~ PROJECT
LOCATION

- —

VICINITY MAP
[ -

REPUBLIC

ENGINEERING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

TB.P.ELS. FIRM NO.: 21633

ENGINEERING DRAWINGS FOR THE ENCLAVE

THIS DOCUMENT IS RELEASED FOR THE PURPOSE
OF REVIEW UNDER THE AUTHORITY OF JOSEPH
THERIOT, P.E. 120299 ON 5/18/2021. IT IS NOT TO BE
USED FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT
PURPOSES.




LEGEND

PROPERTY BOUNDARY
LOT UNES

EASEMENT LINES

DRAIMAGE EASEMENT LINES
ADUCINNG TRACT PROFERTY LINES
OFFSITE EASEMENTS

1412 IRON PIPE FOUND
PRCNAL FOUND

u’mmrmmw:nm
WATCHELL & ASSOC, KR

" IRON nnnmwo

1T IRGH ROD SET
STAUPED OONTERD 10184110

*UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED"

NOTES

1 THE BEARINGS AND DESTANCES SHOWH HEREON.

SYSTEM. CENTRAL ZONE. NAD 8. FER LEIC

FEMA TONE AE” ARE DEFINED AS AREAS DET|

31, LOT 1 AS REFERENCED IN ORDINANCE

2 APORTIONOF THIS PROPERTY LIES WTHIN FEMA ZONE AE
FEMA AP 4807TCOIEE WHICH BEARS AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF SEPTEMBER

BN AR RASRE o) ARTICUS ETATI P CCAOMTE
A SMART NET GPS DBSERY!

A SHOWN ON THE FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAF
26 2008

ERMINED TO HAVE BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS ™

1 THES PROPERTY IS SUBUECT TO ALL THE CONDITIONS OUTLINED IN ORDINANCE 252113

02108 15 HOT PART GF Tres FLAT

ABOVE THE
ELEVATICN, WHICHEVEN 1S HIGHER IN ELEV)
6. FOR EACH DWELLING UNIT, 3 OFF-STREET

4 ALLUTIITY EASEMENTS SHALL BE 10.0 VADE. UTIITY EASEMENT:
SEWER INRASTRUCTURE SHALL BE 150 WIDE. UNLESS OTHERVASE HOTED.

. FISHED FLOOR ELEVATIONS SHALL BE A MIBNIMUM OF 1 FOO!
FRONTING THE LOT. LOTS 620 BLOCK 1 AND TRACT 2 SHALL HAVE A
ASOULLTONY RAS FLOGO B SYATION JBFR O Pl 1 FOOT ARAE THE AVERAGE TG OF Cunl

LOT NUMBER CHANGES
PROPOSED PLAT ORDINANCE 2021-1%
TRACT L DRAMAGE TRACT
TRACT DRANAGE TRACT A4
2022, MocK | s
57ROk L 1321
TS CONTAING PROPOSED WATER AMD

T ABOVE THE AVERAGE TOP OF CURS ELEVATION
FLGOR ELEVATION 2 FEET

PARKDEG SPACES MUST BE PROVIDED

7 £5 FOR DRY
I AREAS WHERE THE LNDERGROUND UT

PASSAGE EASEMENT. 0 ABOVE-GROUND APFUKT|

PERMANENT CORNERS EXTERIOR AND INTERIOR. SHALL U7 IRON ROD WITH A CAP MARKED "GUINTERO
16184110 AFTER COMPLETED CONSTRUCTION AS AUTHORIZED BY THE DEVELOPER

iy & EAPGHIENTS COMCIER WITH X CRABADE EASSUASH
ENANCES ARE AL

& THE B0 FOGT REAR BUNDING LINE 15 OFFSET AND PARMLEL TO THE RIGHT-CR-WWAY.

. I}
;
- —
r 1 WAL :
s, Sl et
| o el
!
INTERIOR CORNER ] s
o7 | Lot 1 o
L [ 52 (S [
L T G [ 15/ [V _1
EUER T RERRte WOR PRSI .

TYPICAL LOT LAYOUT
BCALE- MT.8.

PROJECT
LOCATION

LOCATION MAP @

SCALE NTS

\ PP
rty

s S50 e 4
(DEED N 07" 19 01* E - 130.97)
NOT*1958" E - 138 92~

o purs

’;':- S78° 4136 E-234.75
% 3\ WATER courst or
FTROW) 30068

3%

4 (NToarss W-224 5
28 e o7 o

umwr 1645 E)
N 0716447 E - 184 59"

T8 AV AT E- 2348T)

o pe s

- SHSEIN | [

|

INDIAN TRAIL
(FM 3423)

(DEED N 75° Q1 37 W - 100.86)

(DEEO N 14°5T 557 )
N 14°5723° € - 50 5% |

’
T Ly 775103 W . 7284 [
a2 DEEDS I ST OW

T e f

1} i

4 [repTa— i

it
/ R = /

)
AFPROXMATE LINITS OF 100 VEAR FL

ot

N 7570627 W - 100.79"
Ch-ﬂ!'ﬂ-ﬁmi PR FEMA PANEL 48077TCOIESE WHICH BEARS
ot J AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF SEPTEMACR 26, 2008

)
(DEEDN 12" 17 44" - 158 185)
& _ NIZIEIE- 15526 \ /
I D |
E
| = LYY I
| oF A / [
| i iy fu AL / /
T TamEIR DT © b
| CASKETE. WL 1A a8 ; ) !
3k e [
| 2af al i /
o 1 L
22
| 3%k g., s e
|> o5 W E- o SE | \/‘ — J "
(DEED A 17 05 38 E~ 135011 —— !
S 2k ~——
| NAZ'044T"E - 13497 =R Y TS OF 1OSTEAR PLOGOWAY " S
=W PEA FEMA PANEL AS02TCOIMSE MSCHBEARS | &
I §| | AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF SEPTEVMBER 2% roon w
DD ST akar €. ) I8
S77°AT 38 E - 30014 / &

49°3°W
(DEEDN TT" 43 27 W)

| N 12°0629"E - 149 87
101 1 moca 1

ok e
| e
(DEEDS 77 4T S5°E - 160 87}
l_S 77°50°30" E - 169,75

(OEED N 12 07 05" E - T5.04)
—N12°07'08" E - 74 96" -

(DEED N 12 07 05°E - M 78}

LT, soe 1
AR R TS MURBEIAL
Cowt

[

TEEDS 10 24 0% - 181 05 !
5 1072137 W - 151 05 /

"~
=

\ e

. LoT
2z

I e /

Can D, SUER 217

[DEED N 00 21 40" W - 150 67)
N 00°10°34° W - 159,70
(DEED N 0Y'13°34° W, . 2 %)
NOF 1119 W - 303‘

GRAPMIC HORIZONTAL SCALE

KON ALL VEN BY THESE PRESENTS ThaT TERRA AZUL CONNECTION, LLC, BEING THE
GF THAT CERTAIN 16,6 ACRE TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE Wi E. HALL SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO_ 1084 AND

T ROBERTS SURVEY, ARSTRACT NO. 723, AND BEING ALL OF THE CALLED 2.980 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN &

DEED TO TERHA AZUL DEVELOPMENTS, LLC. RECORDED IN INSTRUMENT MO, 201100045431, DEED RECORDS SEREL, COUNTY

TEXAS ALL OF THE CALLED 7,671 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED TO TERRA AZUL

KECORDED IN INSTRUMENT NO. 701 300044427 DEED RECORDS OF BELL COUNTY. TEXAS, AL OF TME "PARCEL ruuza 1003

ACHE TRAGT OF LAND DESCRIBED 4 A DEED TO TERRA AZUL DEVELOPMENT S, LLC. RECORDED ¥ INST

01300044479 DEED RECORDS OF BELL COUNTY. TEXAS, o OF THE “PARCEL 7 CALLED 2643 ACKE TRACT OF LAND

DESCRISED I A DEED TO TERRA AZUL DEVELOPMENTS, INSTRUMENT HO.

BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, ANO A PART OF LOT 1 BLOCK 1. PAT KERM BUBOIVISION, NECORDED I CABMET 1 RERCA P

RECORDS OF BELL COUNT'Y. TEXAS. WHICH IS MORE FULLY DESCRIBED IN THE DECICATION OF

A5 BHOVAL Y THE PLAT HEREGF. ATTACHED NERETO, A1 LADE A PART WEREH, Mei APPROVE B 1ot S e pAAER

HEIIHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS ANO DOES HEREBY DECICATE TO SAID CITY ALL STREETS

AVENUES DRIVES. ALLEYS AND DRAMAGE TRACTS SHOWN ON SO FLAT. THE SAME TO BE USED &S PUSLIC THOROUGHFARES

AND FOR THE INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF PUSLIC UTILITIES VHEN AND AS AUTHORIZED BY THE CITY OF HARKER

HEXIHTS.

THE DAANAGE AND UTILITY EASEMENTS SHOWN ON SAID FLAT ARE DEDICATED TO SAID OTY OF R HEIGHTS FOR

PESTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF ANY AND AL PUBUIC UTRLITIES. WHICH THE CITY MAY FLECT TG INSTALL AND MAINT AN OR

PERMT TO B IiSTALLED OR MAINTAINED.

LAT ARE BEING DEDIC:

D0 FEE SIUPLE TO THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS.

L S

TRACT 1 AND TRACT
VITNESS THE EXECUTION HEREDF. Gr THES. DAY OF

FOR TERRA AZUL DEVELOPMENTS LLE

oy
CHRIITGPHER DOGSE
vEMBER

BEFORE ME. THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY, OH THIS CHRISTOPHER DOOSE KNOWN TO ME TO BE
THE PERSON WHOSE NAME D10 T FOREGING DISTRUMENT. 1T SAS EEEN ACOORSVA EOGED T8 b Ty 1

SAICRIE
EXECUTED THE FOREGORG BSTRUMENT AS THE OVWNERS OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON.

TR STATE OF TEws
WY COMMISSION EXFIRES

BAtesng
AD. BY THE DIRECTOR OF PLANNING AND

APROVED THS DAY oF
DEVELOPUENT GF THE CIT ¥ OF HARNER HEIGHTS. BELL COUNT ¥, TERAS.

[NRECTOR GF PLANNING AND DEVELCFMENT ATTEST CITY SECRETARY
JdNG c g

AFFROVED THiS DAY OF F AD.BY THE PLANNING ANG ZOMING COUMISSION

OF THE CITY OF 1ARKER HEIGHTS TEXAS,

CHAIRPEREGH PLANNING AND ZOMING COMASSION SECRETARY, PLANSNG AND ZONING COMINESION

SVEY A1)
| BRADUEY W SARGENT. DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT AN ACTUAL AND ACCURATE SURVEY WAS MADE ON THE GROUND OF THE
PLATTED LANO. AND THAT THE CORNER MONUMENTS SHOWN ON THE FOREGOING PLAT WERE FOUND, OR PLACED. I

ACCORDANCE WITH THE SURDIVISICN ORCINANCE OF THE CITY OF KILLEEN, TEXAS.

=

b §
o 1 "

“ ;
AN | e Emam
FAR(
e Sall
1561 W STAN SCHUUETER LP
EEN TX 16540
SURVEY. W, E HALL SURVEY, OWNER. TERRA AZUL DEVELOPMENT, LLC
4. M. ROBERTS SURVEY, A—?ll 25018 EAST ELMS RD
MILLEEN, TEXAS 76542
NUMBER OF BLOCKHS 2
SURVEYOR. QUINTERD ENGINEERING, LLC
NUMBER OF LOTS: w
NUMBER OF TRACTS. 2 m:n 33362
TOTAL ACREAGE 169240
DATE APRIL 2021
PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR:

THE ENCLAVE AT INDIAN TRAIL

CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS

THE ENCLAVE AT INDIAN TRAIL, L.
15 A PRELIMINARY PLAT SITUATED IN THE CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF HARKER DRAWING NO.
HEKIMTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS. P2




" —

[DA-3 PRE
|21.04 AC

[oaapRe
|asac |

|
\l
N~
T

N
~

DA3 POST
21.04AC

[exzros |
assac |

|
-.\\ |
|

\/

(

N\
~

DA-1 POST |
50, BELAC

NOTES
t SEE PRELMANAY DRAINGE REPORT. DATED
el oin
2 ALL UPSTREAM FLOWS SHALL BE ACCEPTED
HOT BE OBSTRUCTED UNLESS OTHERWISE

s [ 3 D HERER
ILLUSTRATES DUR FINAL DESIGN INTENT FOR
THE PROPOSED HYDROLOGIC AND HYDRAULIC
METHODOLO!
ASSUMPTIONS
APPLICABLE UNDERLYING DRAINAGE F
PRINCIPLES AS SPECIFIED IN THE CITY OF
HARKER HEIGHTS DRAINAGE CRITRRIA
MANUAL DATED MAY § 7007

8 THISPROPERTY LIES VATHIN FEMA TONE X* &
ZONE AE™ AS SHOWMN ON THE FLOGD
INSURANCE RATE MAP, FEMA MAR 48027CO285E
WHICH BEARS AN EFFECTIVE DATE CF
SEFTEMBER 24, 20

LEGEND
|DA-Xx DRAMNAGE AREAID
|XXXAC | DRAMAGE aREA ACERAGE

—— N AGE AREA B

raE)

O REPLBLIC

. TAPILL fAVNO D

THE ENCLAVE

PRE-POST DRAINAGE

JAT
THIS DOCUMENT |§ e 1 i
e ol bl R 3

u;
CONSTRUCTION. BIDOING,
OR PERIT APOSES 2




T STORM SEWER WAL BE D)
CONSTRUCTICN PLANS

[ —— — — — — — — —
2 ALLUPSTREAMFLOWS SHALL BE ACCE
3 \ ONSITE AS THEY CURRENTLY EXIST AN SHALL
HOT BE OESTRUCTED. U, ES6 OTHERWISE
—_— N MOTED K Thas AN €1
/. \ — — 3. ENERGY DISSIPATION SHALL BE PROVIDED AT
§ % T e — — — " [EACH QUTFALL BY THE USE CF Ri 5
\ > \ O CONCRETE RIPRAP WITH FORMED
. CONCRETE DISSIPATERS:
\ 4 ALL LOTS MUST HAVE POSITIVE DRARAGE
AVAY FROM STRUGTURE
\ : P PR riiciiy-——
\ ILLUSTRATES OUR FINAL DESIGH INTENT FOR
THE PROPOSED HYDROLGGIG AND HYDRALLIC
\ METHODOLOSIES. PLANMIG AND DESIGH
ASSUMPTIONS USED TO ADOESS THE
APPLICASLE UNDERLYING DRAINAGE FACILITY
PRINCIPLES AS SFECIFIED I THE CITY OF

—~
#

HARKER HEIGHTS DAMMAGE CRITERIA

X : ;
DA-1 STORM FHCHEEARS AESFECTIE DATE O

DA-2 STORM |
272AC. |

12.13AC

LEGEND

(E7 comm v ETs]
F‘-h_

WN/

| DA-Xx | DRMNAGE AREA LD
XXXAC | DAMNAGE AREA ACEAAGE

— — DAUMNAGE AREA BOUNDARY

[FEMA 100-VR FLOODWAY }-

m.lllaulb«-ﬁr'i(r WU

B T 7T —

LT3 oy

®REPLIBI IC

L3 rmuNo i

THE ENCLAVE

DRAIANGE
STRUCUTURES

THIS DOCUMENT IS
RELEASED FOR THE
PURPOSE OF REVIE
UNCER THE AUTHORITY
OF JOSER THERIOT,
150299 On &11bi0mn T 1S
NOT TO B USED FOR
CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING
PERMT PURPOSES,




[ExvivoaAn}

X HYDRANT

WATER NOTES

1. ALLWATERUNES SHALL BE AWWA C300 FIPE
UNLESS OTHERVASE NOTED.

2. AL CONSTRUCTION SHOVY HEREIN SHALL BE
PER CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS STANDARDS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

3 EXISTING UTLITIES SHOWN HEREIN HAVE BEEN

CATED BY VISIELE APPURTENANCES AND

RECORD DRAVANGS. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE.

RESPONSIELE FOR LOCATION AND

PROTECTING AL UTIITIES REGARDLESS OF

TiE TO EX WATER LINE
GATE VALVE

HEIGHTS STANDARD DETAIL. ALL VALVES FOR
HYDRANTS ARE TO BE COMNECTED DIRECTLY
TOTEE ANG HYDRANT IS TO BE EXTENDED TC

H PROPERTY UNE

5 ALLFIELD BERCS SHALL BE PER FIPE
MANUFACTURER RECOMUENDATIONS.

& WATER.SENER CROSSING SHALL MEET THE
VUM CURRENT REGUREMENTS FER ToEQ
AND CITY CODE

7. THECONTRACTOR SHALL COORCINATE THE
FINAL PLACBUENT OF PROFOSED YALVES AND
G HER AR ENANCES YWATH STREET
SIDEWALK AND UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS TO
AVOAD CONFUCTS:

(i 45 wcvig)

'REPUBLIC

Faselge T L] 5
Lis imuno nen

THE ENCLAVE

WATER LAYOUT

B JAT
THIS DOCUMENT 15 JAT
RELEASED FORTHE |

PURPGSE GF REVIEW JAT

UNDER THE AUTHORITY [ AT

OF JOSEPH THERIOT. PE. f—
130299 ON 1472021 1T 1S 21-020-001

NOT 10 BE USEDFOR  [ormomas

CONSTRUCTION. BIDGING,
OR PERINT PURPOSES. 4




REROUTE EX SERVICE

TO NEVY SEWER MAIN
ABANOON OLD SERVICE IN FLAGE
[NO BENDS GREATER Trian s

(RE-ROUTE EX SERVICE

SERVICE N PLACE

[N BENDS GREATER THAN 43 FE-RGUTE EX SERVICE

TONEW SEWER MAIN
|ABANDON OLD SERVICE IN FLACE
MO BENDS GREATER THAN 4!

=W

T

SEWER NOTES
D

SANITARY SEVER PPE SHALL BE ASTI
013024, SOR 26 PVC FIFE UNLESS HNGTED
OTHERWSE

ALL CONSTRUCTION SHOVIM HEREIN SHALL BE
PER CITY OF MARKER HEIGHTS. STANDAKDS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

EXISTING UTILITIES S+OWN MEREIN HAVE BEEN

HECCRD DRAVINGS. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING AND
PROTECTING ALL UTRITIES REGARDLESS OF
THERE DEFICTION HEREIN

WATER - SEWER CROSSING SHALL MEET THE
MIMIMUM CURRENT REGUIREVEN cEQ
AND CITY COCE,

L DYSER A

VRE

PUBLIC

Ariilsmuss Tan

THE ENCLAVE

SEWER LAYOUT

JAT
This DOCUMENT IS AT
RELEASED FOR THE

PURPOSE OF REVIEW AT
UNDER THE AUTHORITY [ AT
OF JOSEP THERIOT PE. |
120295 ON 12901, T 1S 21020-001

NOT TOBE USEDFOR  [mamms
CONSTRUGTION BIDCING,

R FERMT PARPCSES 5




SIGEWALKS WITHIN THE PROJECT BOUNDARY
ARE 10 BE 5 WDE ANO 1 FRCM PROPERTY
UNE.

2 SIDEWALKS AND CURE RAMPS WITHIN THE
PROJECT BOUNDARY ARE TO BE BURT Y
HOMERUILDER AT TIME OF HOUSE
CONSTRUCTIGN UL ESS OTHERWSE HOTED
CH THES SEET

1 ALLCURE RAMPS AR STANDARD HARKER
HEIGHTS W EELCHAIR RANGS LI

SIDEWALK NOTES
1

THE ENCLAVE

SIDEWALK LAYOUT

" JAT
THSDOCUMENTIS |55 s
RELEASED FOR THE =
PURPOSE OF REVIEW JAT
UNDER THE AUTHORITY | Mﬁ
OF JOSEPw THERSIT, PE. :s =]
12029 ON 482001 1T 1S 21020001
WOT 10 BE USEDFOA  [mameee
COMSTRUCTION BIDDING
R PERMT PURPOSES. 6




ORDINANCE NO. _2021-99

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKFR HEIGHTS, TEXAS, GRANTING PD-R
ZONING ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS Al8B6BC W.E. HALL, ACRES 2.649,
AOT23BC JM. ROBERTS, & A-1086 W.E. HALL, ACRES 3003, A1036BC W.E. HALL,
ACRES 7.917, AND CENTEX WASTE MANAGEMENT DEVELOPMENT PHASE TWO,
BLOCK 901, LOT PT 4, (SW PT OF 4), ACRES 2.980, GENERALLY LOCATED EAST OF
INDIAN TRAIL (FM 3423) DIRECTLY BEHIND HARKFER HEIGHTS CENTRAL FIRE
STATION, HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS.

WHEREAS, the City Council (“Council”) of the City of Harker Heights (“City™) finds that after
due notice and public hearings as required by law, and after consideration of the recommendation
of the Planning and Zoning Commission, it is necessary and desirable to amend the Code of Harker
Heights (“Code™) as hereinafter provided; and

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and notice
of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all in strict
accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS:

SECTION 1: The Council officially finds and declares that the facts and recitations set forth in the
preambile to this Ordinance are true and comrect.

SECTION 2: The hereinafter-described property, as previously zoned of M-1 (Light
Manufacturing) and R-2 Two Family Dwelling District), is hereby rezoned to PD-R (Planned
Development Residential), and subject to the Conditions described in the attached Exhibit A (Z21-
05 Conditions):

A1086BC W.E. Hall, Acres 2.649, A0723BC J.M. Roberts, & A-1086 W.E. Hall,
Acres 3.003, A1086BC W.E. Hall, Acres 7.917, and Centex Waste Management
Development Phase Two, Block 001, Lot Pt 4, (SW Ptof4), Acres 2.980, generally
located East of Indian Trail (FM 3423) directly behind Harker Heights Central Fire
Station, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas

SECTION 3: Table VII, Table of Special Ordinances, of the Code is hereby supplemented by
adding the following entry:

Ord. No. Date Passed Description
2021-09 03/09/21 Granting PD-R zoning on property

described as A1086BC W.E. Hall,
Acres 2.649, A0723BC J.M. Roberts, &
A-1086 W.E. Hall, Acres 3.003,
A1086BC W.E. Hall, Acres 7.917, and
Centex Waste Management
Development Phase Two, Block 001,
Lot Pt 4, (SW Pt of 4), Acres 2.980,
generally located East of Indian Trail
(FM 3423) directly behind Harker
Heights Central Fire Station, Harker
Heights, Bell County, Texas



SECTION 4: All ordinances or parts of ondinances in oonflict with the provisions of this
Ordmance are o the extent of such conflict hersby repealed.

SECTION 5: This Ondinance shall be effective from and afier its passage, and the City Clerk shall
publish the caption or title of bereof within ten days 2s reguired by law.

PASSED AND APPROVED on March 9, 2021.

Faadiag
\v“““ Rl
S

r CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS:
3N
Sk

o
=
=
=
=
=z
=

H. Smith, Mayor

-
“o,

-
-
A .
s
7

ATTEST:

bl o ol

Julie Helsham, City Secretary




March 9, 2021

Exhibit A

Z.21-05 Conditions

. A waiver is granted to allow a single access and secondary emergency access as depicted in

the attached Concept Plan for The Enclave at Indian Trail subdivision.

The northern subdivision entrance shall be a minimum of 48 feet wide with a minimum 70-
feet of right-of-way for a minimum distance of 200 feet from the intersection.

The southern subdivision entrance and internal streets shall be a minimum of 36 feet wide
and shall be allowed to vary from a 60’ ROW to a 56’ ROW.

Any interior roadway not connected to a public street on both ends must have a turn around
with a minimum radius of eighty (80) feet.

5. No units shall be constructed over existing utility mains or private service lines.

6. Maximize green spaces while minimizing the total amount of driveway coverage.

10.
11.

12.
13.
14.

15.
16.

17.

18.

All front facing fences when located between units less than 12 feet apart must have a
minimum 3-foot-wide gate.

If units are less than 12 feet apart, eaves between the units may not protrude beyond 16
inches from the wall.

Develop window configuration that break the line of sight between units.
Vary building placement to increase variation in facades and more articulated building edges.

Take advantage of existing topography and natural features (i.e., existing trees) to maintain
appropriate grade levels consistent with surrounding structures and to enhance the aesthetics
of the area.

The rear setback for all lots will be reduced from 20 feet to 10 feet.
The side yard setback on corner lots will be reduced from 15 feet to 10 feet.

The proposed Drainage Tracts A - E shall be dedicated to the City of Harker Heights for
drainage and green space purposes.

The proposed Tract F shall be dedicated to the City of Harker Heights.

A structure constructed on Lot 1 may have the front doors not facing the roadway as long as
the front doors are oriented to the east or west.

For Lots 4, 5, 6, 19, 20 and 21 the average lot width can be less than the 70 feet minimum if
the front yard width at the right-of-way line is 50 foot or greater.

The planned development shall adhere to all other residential requirements as directed from
the City of Harker Heights Code of Ordinances and all current and adopted Building Codes.



)

=2

(N FEET)

=
1 inchs 80 1L

SCALE : [

P

|

Record Owner: Terra Azul Developments, LLC

Authorized Agenl: Chris Doose
Proposed Name: The Enclave al Indian Trail

Name: Flintrock Builders

HOTE:

Fire Hydronts size & spacing in gccordonce with
City of Horker Heigris Code of Ordnances.

A

INDIAN TRAIL

THE ENCLAVE AT

CONCEPT PLAN:

S ﬁwuzr e

u\ﬁuﬂnﬂ:.ﬁu?.




Location
" =
&)

[Eastern]




THE ENCLAVE AT INDIAN TRAIL

P21-15 Preliminary Plat — The Enclave at Indian Trail

Plat Distributed to HH Staff: April 29, 2021
Comments Returned to Republic Engineering & Development Services: May 5, 2021

Planning & Development

1.

10.

11.

12.

Plat Dedication Page: Please confirm that the “J.M. Roberts Survey, Abstract No. 3” is accurate.
Staff has found “Abstract No. 723" within BellCAD.

Plat Dedication Page: Please identify a 5’ wide sidewalk along both sides of Enclave Blvd. and
Water Course Dr.

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall amend Note 4 such that utility easements containing
proposed water and sewer infrastructure shall be a minimum of 15 feet wide.

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall amend Note 5 to account for the requirement that Lots 6-
20, Block 1 and Tract 2, shall have a finished floor elevation 2 feet above the regulatory BFE or the
1 foot above the top of curb, whichever is higher in elevation.

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall add a note indicating that on this plat dedication page Tract
2 is composed of Drainage Tracts A-E as referenced in Ordinance 2021-19 and that Tract 1 is
composed of Tract F as referenced in Ordinance 2021-19.

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall address the minimum cul-de-sac radius on Watercourse
Drive.

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall add a note indicating that Lot 1 as referenced in Ordinance
2021-19, is not part of this plat.

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall add a note indicating that on this plat dedication page Lots
20-22, Block 1 are Lots 4-6 as referenced in Ordinance 2021-19 and that Lots 5-7, Block 1 are Lots
19-21 as referenced in Ordinance 2021-19.

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall annotate the easements illustrated between lots (Lots 9 &
10, Block 2, and Lots 6 & 7, Block 1).

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall address those lots that do not meet the minimum 50-foot
front width per Ordinance 2021-19 (Lot 22, Block 1).

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall provide annotations (distance into the Lot from corner of
lot) for the variable width drainage easement in Lot 20, Block 1 such that it is able to be located
in the field.

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall clarify why the variable width drainage easement shown in
Lot 20, Block 1 is not part of Tract 2.




13,

14.
15.

16.

17.

18.

19

o

20.

21.

22

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall amend the plat dedication statement such that Tract 1 is not
included in the public utilities dedication and is a separate sentence dedicating Tract 1 to the City
fee simple.

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall annotate the rear lot width of Lot 21, Block 1.

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall address those lots that do not meet the 70-foot average
width and are not part of the exemption allowed in Ordinance 2021-19 (Lots 9 & 24, Block 1 and
Lots 1 & 2, Block 2).

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall clarify the limits of the called “Drainage Reserve” and
annotate the hatched Floodway area.

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall provide utility easements for the existing sanitary sewer lines
and services (Lot 12, Block 2; Tracts 1 & 2, Lots 19-22, Block 1) or annotate on the engineering
sheets what the intent is for the offsite services.

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall add a utility easement to Tract 1 illustrating future
connectivity to water/sewer and add drainage easements for those portions of Tract 2 that will
have drainage infrastructure and are not within the SFHA.

Drainage Report: Applicant shall provide pre and post development drainage calculations for
Q100.

Engineering Sheet 3: Applicant shall provide connectivity such that the proposed northern inlet
system outfalls in the downstream direction.

Engineering Sheet 5: Applicant shall extend the proposed sewer main through Lot 1 Block 1, and
Lot 1, Block 2 to the western parcel boundary west.

Engineering Sheet 5 & Plat Dedication Page: applicant shall verify service location to the 1.127
acre tract behind Lots 5 & 6, Block 2, to Miller Addition behind Lots 32 & 24, Block 1, and Post
Office Addition subdivision west of Tract 1 and provide for a utility easements accordingly.

Public Works, Mark Hyde

PwoNp

Add a 6-inch gate valve to the water line in the middle of Lot 6.

Provide an energy dissipation/rip rap detail for the underground storm sewer outfalls.

For the storm sewer pipes: Annotate the pipe diameters and pipe material type.

During the 10-year, 25-year and 100-year storm events, what will prevent the storm water runoff
from Enclave Blvd. from jumping the curb and inundating the homes on Lot’s 16 and 17? Section
158.03 of The City of Harker Heights Drainage Criteria Manual requires the following:

158.03 GENERAL.

(A) Storm water runoff peak flow rates for the 10-year and 100-year frequency storms
shall not cause increased adverse inundation of any building or roadway surface.

(B) Street curbs, gutters, inlets, and storm sewers shall be designed to intercept, contain

and transport all runoff from the 10-year frequency storm, without overtopping the curb.
2




(C) In addition to division (B) above, the public drainage system shall be designed to convey
those flows from greater than the 10-year frequency storm up to and including the 100-year
frequency storm within defined public rights-of-way or drainage easements.

Consulting Engineer, Otto Wiederhold

Engineer must verify that sanitary sewer main that is being tied into has capacity for new 38 lots.
Detention will not be required. This subdivision is located in lower 1/3 of major drainage basin.
Would recommend more than one storm sewer outlet and additional curb inlets.

P wnNp

City should make Engineer aware of Harker Heights Drainage Study & Master Plan, and water
model on main drainage along back of lots.

Fire Marshal, Brad Alley

1. No Comments
Building Official, Mike Beard
1. No Comments

ONCOR

Century Link, Chris McGuire

1. No Comments

Time Warner Cable/Spectrum

ATMOS
1. Atmos does have gas facilities/mains at this plat location denoted below:

e 3" Steel Main along E Veterans Memorial Blvd
3" & 4” Poly Main along Indian Trail
e [2] 1-1/4” Poly Service Lines

Atmos cannot warrant the accuracy of this location without field verification of our assets
relative to the property. Final verification of gas main locations can best be obtained through
the Statewide One Call System at 1-800-545-6005. (811). If the developer/owner or city would
like a map of our underground facilities in this area location, they can complete a Map Release
document and send to the Atmos Map Request email on the form.

TXDOT

1. The Enclave Blvd. shall be right in right out only and the adjoining property to the south of
Enclave Blvd. shall access their property from Enclave Blvd. and remove their existing driveways.

Beyond this, TxDOT does concur.




B info@RepublicEDS.com

REPUBLIC o rom
Harker Heights, TX 76548

ENGINEERING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
L, 979.234.0396

May 10, 2021

City of Harker Heights
305 Millers Crossing
Harker Heights, Texas 76548

Attn: Harker Heights City Staff

Harker Heights City Staff,

Below is the response to comments for The Enclave Preliminary Plat, received on May 5, 2021.
Response to comment is in bold.

Planning & Development

1. Plat Dedication Page: Please confirm that the “J.M. Roberts Survey, Abstract No. 3” is accurate.
Staff has found “Abstract No. 723" within BellCAD.
Abstract No. has been updated on plat, field notes and dedication.

2. Plat Dedication Page: Please identify a 5" wide sidewalk along both sides of Enclave Blvd. and
Water Course Dr.
Sidewalks are shown on the Sidewalk Layout, Sheet 6.

3. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall amend Note 4 such that utility easements containing
proposed water and sewer infrastructure shall be a minimum of 15 feet wide.
Note 4 has been updated.

4, Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall amend Note 5 to account for the requirement that Lots 6-
20, Block 1 and Tract 2, shall have a finished floor elevation 2 feet above the regulatory BFE or the
1 foot above the top of curb, whichever is higher in elevation.
Note 5 has been updated.

www.republiceds.com Texas Engineering Firm F-21633



(R'REPUBLIC

T SEWICES

5. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall add a note indicating that on this plat dedication page Tract
2 is composed of Drainage Tracts A-E as referenced in Ordinance 2021-19 and that Tract 1 is
composed of Tract F as referenced in Ordinance 2021-19.

A Lot Number Change Table has been added to clarify the lot numbers from the proposed plat
and Ordinance 2021-19.

6. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall address the minimum cul-de-sac radius on Watercourse
Drive.
City regulations for subdivisions, 154.37 streets, (7) Cul-de-sac design, only requires a 50’ right-
of-way (ROW) radius. Itis our understanding that Zoning Ordinance 2021-09, Z21-05 Conditions
#4 only applies if the cul-de-sac exceeded the maximum 800’ length requirement and was added
in case TxDOT did not allow a second entrance road. Since the cul-de-sac only measures 235.26’
and there are two entrances to the development, we feel that the cul-de-sac falls under the
original city regulation of a 50' ROW radius (as shown in the approved concept plan). It should
also be noted that there is only 8 duplex lots on the cul-de-sac, which is well under the 30 lot

maximum per fire code.

7. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall add a note indicating that Lot 1 as referenced in Ordinance
2021-19, is not part of this plat.
Note 3.1 was added to the plat to address this comment.

8. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall add a note indicating that on this plat dedication page Lots
20-22, Block 1 are Lots 4-6 as referenced in Ordinance 2021-19 and that Lots 5-7, Block 1 are Lots
19-21 as referenced in Ordinance 2021-19.

A Lot Number Change Table has been added to clarify the lot numbers from the proposed plat
and Ordinance 2021-19.

9. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall annotate the easements illustrated between lots (Lots 9 &
10, Block 2, and Lots 6 & 7, Block 1).
Easement annotations has been added.

10. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall address those lots that do not meet the minimum 50-foot

front width per Ordinance 2021-19 (Lot 22, Block 1).
Lot layout has been adjusted to ensure compliance with Ordinance 2021-19.

www.republiceds.com Texas Engineering Firm F-21633



RIREPUBLIC

ENGINEERING & DEVELOPMENT SEHVICES

11. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall provide annotations (distance into the Lot from corner of
lot) for the variable width drainage easement in Lot 20, Block 1 such that it is able to be located
in the field.

The variable width drainage easement has been revised to a 15’ D.E. parallel to the rear lot line
of lots 20-22, block 1.

12. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall clarify why the variable width drainage easement shown in
Lot 20, Block 1 is not part of Tract 2.
The variable width drainage easement has been revised to a 15’ D.E. parallel to the rear lot line
of lots 20-22, block 1. This easement will allow future stormwater passage from Tract 1 and

neighboring parcels.

13. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall amend the plat dedication statement such that Tract 1 is not
included in the public utilities dedication and is a separate sentence dedicating Tract 1 to the City
fee simple.

The dedication statement has been updated.

14. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall annotate the rear lot width of Lot 21, Block 1.
Rear lot width has been added to Lot 21, Block 1.

15. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall address those lots that do not meet the 70-foot average

width and are not part of the exemption allowed in Ordinance 2021-19 (Lots 9 & 24, Block 1 and
Lots 1 & 2, Block 2).
Lot 9, Block 1 has been adjusted to meet the average width requirement. Lot 24, Block 1 was
verified that it meets the average width requirement. | think the second rear distance callout
of 4.50’ was missed when calculating the average width upon initial review. Lots 1 & 2, Block 2
are very deep lots, resulting in a narrower rear lot width than a typical lot in this development.
To ensure the average 70’ lot width, within the build window, a rear build line was set at a 90’
offset from the front of the lot (where a typical 100’ deep lot’s rear build line would be). These
lot’s widths are almost exactly the same as their corresponding approved concept plan lots 25
and 26 and should have been included in the exceptions of Ordinance 2021-19. We believe that
with the addition of the 90’ offset rear build line, these lots meet the intent of Ordinance 2021-
19.

16. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall clarify the limits of the called “Drainage Reserve” and
annotate the hatched Floodway area.
Tract 2 has perimeter distances and acreage to establish its limits. The Floodway has been
annotated.

www.republiceds.com Texas Engineering Firm F-21633



(R'REPUBLIC

HEERING: & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

17. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall provide utility easements for the existing sanitary sewer lines
and services (Lot 12, Block 2; Tracts 1 & 2, Lots 19-22, Block 1) or annotate on the engineering
sheets what the intent is for the offsite services.

All existing service lines will be re-routed and tied into The Enclave’s sewer system. See sheet

5 for proposed re-routing of each service and their corresponding easement locations.

18. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall add a utility easement to Tract 1 illustrating future
connectivity to water/sewer and add drainage easements for those portions of Tract 2 that will
have drainage infrastructure and are not within the SFHA.

Utility and drainage easements have been added for Tract 1, as well as a sewer cleanout for
future tie in. The utility easement allows for future water connectivity if needed. Drainage

easements have been added to Tract 2 for the proposed storm drain systems.

19. Drainage Report: Applicant shall provide pre and post development drainage calculations for
Q100.
100-yr storm results have been added to the report. All flows at the final discharge point are

reduced in post-development conditions.

20. Engineering Sheet 3: Applicant shall provide connectivity such that the proposed northern inlet
system outfalls in the downstream direction.
A bend has been added to the northern inlet system to discharge the storm outfall in a

downstream direction.

21. Engineering Sheet 5: Applicant shall extend the proposed sewer main through Lot 1 Block 1, and
Lot 1, Block 2 to the western parcel boundary west.

Sewer has been extended to the western boundary.

22. Engineering Sheet 5 & Plat Dedication Page: applicant shall verify service location to the 1.127

acre tract behind Lots 5 & 6, Block 2, to Miller Addition behind Lots 32 & 24, Block 1, and Post
Office Addition subdivision west of Tract 1 and provide for a utility easements accordingly.
A utility easement has been added to Lot 22 to account for sewer services re-routing. From our
information, the post office tract’s service goes around this property to the south. If this is
found to not be the case during the creation of construction plans, the service will be re-routed
to the sewer main as with the other services in Tract 1. All services through Tract 1 will have
easements re-defined with the final plat once the re-routing is designed with construction
plans. The 1.127 acre tract is currently un-developed. An easement has been added between
lots 5-6, block 2 and a service will be extended to the property line.

www.republiceds.com Texas Engineering Firm F-21633



(RYREPUBLIC

ENT SEWVCES

Public Works, Mark Hyde

1. Add a 6-inch gate valve to the water line in the middle of Lot 6.
Gate valve has been added.

2. Provide an energy dissipation/rip rap detail for the underground storm sewer outfalls.
Riprap has been added to sheet 3. Final design and details will be part of the construction plans
and reports.

3. For the storm sewer pipes: Annotate the pipe diameters and pipe material type.
Preliminary pipe sizes and material has been added to sheet 3. Final design and details will be

part of the construction plans.

4. During the 10-year, 25-year and 100-year storm events, what will prevent the storm water runoff
from Enclave Blvd. from jumping the curb and inundating the homes on Lot’s 16 and 17? Section
158.03 of The City of Harker Heights Drainage Criteria Manual requires the following:

158.03 GENERAL.

(A)  Storm water runoff peak flow rates for the 10-year and 100-year frequency storms
shall not cause increased adverse inundation of any building or roadway surface.

(B) Street curbs, gutters, inlets, and storm sewers shall be designed to intercept, contain
and transport all runoff from the 10-year frequency storm, without overtopping the curb.

(C) Inaddition to division (B) above, the public drainage system shall be designed to convey
those flows from greater than the 10-year frequency storm up to and including the 100-year
frequency storm within defined public rights-of-way or drainage easements.

There will be a valley gutter at the intersection to turn the water north, towards the proposed
inlets. The street will be a standard crowed street, not super elevated. The valley gutter
along with the crown of the road should prevent water from jumping the curb. This
intersection will be analyzed more thoroughly during the creation of construction plans and
calculations will be presented in the drainage report at time of construction plan submittal.

www.republiceds.com Texas Engineering Firm F-21633



Consulting Engineer, Otto Wiederhold

1. Engineer must verify that sanitary sewer main that is being tied into has capacity for new 38 lots.
Internally all sewer lines are to be 6”. 37 duplex lots would result in, at a maximum, 74 living
unit equivalents (LUEs). Assuming 3 people per LUE, 100 gpd/person and a peaking factor of 4,
a 6” line at minimum grade could handle 214 LUEs, so there are no capacity issues within the
development. The sewer main that the development ties into is a 15” line that serves a very
large area. The section of 15” sewer main that is being tied into is at a 1.54% slope, assuming
the same worst case design parameters as stated above, this main can handle 4328 LUEs. That
means that the proposed development would only use up 1.7% of the sewer main’s capacity in
a worst case peak event. This demonstrates that the addition of these lots will not significantly
effect the 15” sewer main’s capacity. If the city believes further investigation is warranted, we
request that those calculations be a requirement of the construction plans and final design

reports.

2. Detention will not be required. This subdivision is located in lower 1/3 of major drainage basin.

Understood

3. Would recommend more than one storm sewer outlet and additional curb inlets.
Inlet systems will be analyzed in more detail during the creation of construction plans and
calculations will be presented in the drainage report at time of construction plan submittal.

4. City should make Engineer aware of Harker Heights Drainage Study & Master Plan, and water
model on main drainage along back of lots.
The master plan will be reviewed and taken into consideration during the creation of

construction plans.

Fire Marshal, Brad Alley

No Comments

Building Official, Mike Beard

No Comments

ONCOR, Derex Spencer

No Comments.

www.republiceds.com Texas Engineering Firm F-21633



Century Link, Chris McGuire

No Comments.

Time Warner Cable/Spectrum, Shaun Whitehead

No Comments.

ATMOS, Burton Jones
1. Atmos does have gas facilities/mains at this plat location denoted below:

e 3" Steel Main along E Veterans Memorial Blvd
¢ 3”& 4” Poly Main along Indian Trail
e [2] 1-1/4” Poly Service Lines

Atmos cannot warrant the accuracy of this location without field verification of our assets
relative to the property. Final verification of gas main locations can best be obtained through
the Statewide One Call System at 1-800-545-6005. (811). If the developer/owner or city would
like a map of our underground facilities in this area location, they can complete a Map Release
document and send to the Atmos Map Request email on the form.

Understood
TXDOT

1. The Enclave Blvd. shall be right in right out only and the adjoining property to the south of
Enclave Blvd. shall access their property from Enclave Blvd. and remove their existing driveways.

Beyond this, TxDOT does concur.

Understood, this will be a condition of the driveway permit.

Sincerely,

Joseph Theriot, P.E.

www.republiceds.com Texas Engineering Firm F-21633



THE ENCLAVE AT INDIAN TRAIL

P21-15 Preliminary Plat — The Enclave at Indian Trail

Plat Distributed to HH Staff: April 29, 2021
Revised Plat Distributed to HH Staff: May 10, 2021
Comments Returned to Republic Engineering & Development Services: May 14, 2021

Planning & Development

1.

Plat Dedication Page: Please confirm that the “J.M. Roberts Survey, Abstract No. 3” is accurate.
Staff has found “Abstract No. 723" within BellCAD.

Met 5/13/2021

Plat Dedication Page: Please identify a 5' wide sidewalk along both sides of Enclave Blvd. and
Water Course Dr.

Met 5/13/2021

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall amend Note 4 such that utility easements containing
proposed water and sewer infrastructure shall be a minimum of 15 feet wide.

Met 5/13/2021

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall amend Note 5 to account for the requirement that Lots 6-
20, Block 1 and Tract 2, shall have a finished floor elevation 2 feet above the regulatory BFE or the
1 foot above the top of curb, whichever is higher in elevation.

Met 5/13/2021

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall add a note indicating that on this plat dedication page Tract
2 is composed of Drainage Tracts A-E as referenced in Ordinance 2021-19 and that Tract 1 is
composed of Tract F as referenced in Ordinance 2021-19.

Applicant’s response meets the request. However, please correct the typo in the 3.1 Table such that
for Tract 2 the Ordinance 2021-19 call outs were Drainage Tracts A-E.

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall address the minimum cul-de-sac radius on Watercourse
Drive.

Met 5/13/2021

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall add a note indicating that Lot 1 as referenced in Ordinance
2021-19, is not part of this plat.

Met 5/13/2021

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall add a note indicating that on this plat dedication page Lots
20-22, Block 1 are Lots 4-6 as referenced in Ordinance 2021-19 and that Lots 5-7, Block 1 are Lots
19-21 as referenced in Ordinance 2021-19.

Met 5/13/2021




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall annotate the easements illustrated between lots (Lots 9 &
10, Block 2, and Lots 6 & 7, Block 1).

Met 5/13/2021

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall address those lots that do not meet the minimum 50-foot
front width per Ordinance 2021-19 (Lot 22, Block 1).

Met 5/13/2021

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall provide annotations (distance into the Lot from corner of
lot) for the variable width drainage easement in Lot 20, Block 1 such that it is able to be located
in the field.

Met 5/13/2021

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall clarify why the variable width drainage easement shown in
Lot 20, Block 1 is not part of Tract 2.

Met 5/13/2021

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall amend the plat dedication statement such that Tract 1 is not
included in the public utilities dedication and is a separate sentence dedicating Tract 1 to the City
fee simple.

Met 5/13/2021

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall annotate the rear lot width of Lot 21, Block 1.

Met 5/13/2021

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall address those lots that do not meet the 70-foot average
width and are not part of the exemption allowed in Ordinance 2021-19 (Lots 9 & 24, Block 1 and
Lots 1 & 2, Block 2).

Met 5/13/2021

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall clarify the limits of the called “Drainage Reserve” and
annotate the hatched Floodway area.

Applicant’s response meets the request. Applicant shall clarify what area the term “Drainage
Reserve” and annotated on the plat dedication page just north of the platted area is calling out.
Please remove said offsite term from the plat dedication page if it does not indicate something
already in existence and is not part of this plat.

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall provide utility easements for the existing sanitary sewer lines
and services (Lot 12, Block 2; Tracts 1 & 2, Lots 19-22, Block 1) or annotate on the engineering
sheets what the intent is for the offsite services.

Applicant’s response meets the request. Applicant shall also clarify the unconnected manhole
illustrated in Lot 24, Block 1. Appicant is advised that when the construction plans are submitted,
the proposed sewer service relocation between Lots 9 -10, Block 2 shall be installed such that it does
not cross the services to either Lot 9 or 10 (may require the double connection to service Lot 10 and
the offsite lot and a single connection for Lot 9).




18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall add a utility easement to Tract 1 illustrating future
connectivity to water/sewer and add drainage easements for those portions of Tract 2 that will
have drainage infrastructure and are not within the SFHA.

Met 5/13/2021

Drainage Report: Applicant shall provide pre and post development drainage calculations for
Q100.

Partially Met. The applicant has annotated two different drianage basins as DA-2 for post
development drainage calculations (annotations on Sheets 2 & 3 don’t appear to match). Please
clarify which calculations in the report corresponded to each illustrated drainage basin. Also
clarify/address how the impact of the increase in flows and new point discharge from DA-3 shown
in the drainage report will be mitigated (i.e. add a statement regarding energy dissapation and
timing of discharge).

Engineering Sheet 3: Applicant shall provide connectivity such that the proposed northern inlet
system outfalls in the downstream direction.

Applicant’s response meets the request Be advised that an analysis of the proposed infrastructure
and outfall will be required in the construction plan submission as indicated in Engineer Note #3.
Engineering Sheet 5: Applicant shall extend the proposed sewer main through Lot 1 Block 1, and
Lot 1, Block 2 to the western parcel boundary west.

Met 5/13/2021

Engineering Sheet 5 & Plat Dedication Page: applicant shall verify service location to the 1.127
acre tract behind Lots 5 & 6, Block 2, to Miller Addition behind Lots 32 & 24, Block 1, and Post
Office Addition subdivision west of Tract 1 and provide for a utility easements accordingly.

Met 5/13/2021

Public Works, Mark Hyde

B W N R

Add a 6-inch gate valve to the water line in the middle of Lot 6.

Provide an energy dissipation/rip rap detail for the underground storm sewer outfalls.

For the storm sewer pipes: Annotate the pipe diameters and pipe material type.

During the 10-year, 25-year and 100-year storm events, what will prevent the storm water runoff
from Enclave Blvd. from jumping the curb and inundating the homes on Lot’s 16 and 17? Section
158.03 of The City of Harker Heights Drainage Criteria Manual requires the following:

158.03 GENERAL.

(A)  Storm water runoff peak flow rates for the 10-year and 100-year frequency storms

shall not cause increased adverse inundation of any building or roadway surface.

(B) Street curbs, gutters, inlets, and storm sewers shall be designed to intercept, contain

and transport all runoff from the 10-year frequency storm, without overtopping the curb.




(C) In addition to division (B) above, the public drainage system shall be designed to convey
those flows from greater than the 10-year frequency storm up to and including the 100-year

frequency storm within defined public rights-of-way or drainage easements.
Met 5/13/2021

Consulting Engineer, Otto Wiederhold

Engineer must verify that sanitary sewer main that is being tied into has capacity for new 38 lots.
Detention will not be required. This subdivision is located in lower 1/3 of major drainage basin.

Would recommend more than one storm sewer outlet and additional curb inlets.

-l

City should make Engineer aware of Harker Heights Drainage Study & Master Plan, and water
model on main drainage along back of lots.
Met 5/13/2021

Fire Marshal, Brad Alley

1. No Comments

Building Official, Mike Beard

1. No Comments

ONCOR

Century Link, Chris McGuire

1. No Comments

Time Warner Cable/Spectrum

ATMOS

1. Atmos does have gas facilities/mains at this plat location denoted below:

e 3" Steel Main along E Veterans Memorial Blvd
e 3" & 4” Poly Main along Indian Trail
e [2]1-1/4” Poly Service Lines

Atmos cannot warrant the accuracy of this location without field verification of our assets
relative to the property. Final verification of gas main locations can best be obtained through
the Statewide One Call System at 1-800-545-6005. (811). If the developer/owner or city would
like a map of our underground facilities in this area location, they can complete a Map Release

document and send to the Atmos Map Request email on the form.
No Response as of 5/13/2021

TXDOT




1. The Enclave Blvd. shall be right in right out only and the adjoining property to the south of

Enclave Blvd. shall access their property from Enclave Blvd. and remove their existing driveways.

Beyond this, TxDOT does concur.

No Response as of 5/13/2021




info@RepublicEDS.com

REPUBLIC o s
Harker Heights, TX 76548

ENGINEERING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
8, 979.234.0396

May 18, 2021

City of Harker Heights
305 Millers Crossing
Harker Heights, Texas 76548

Attn: Harker Heights City Staff

Harker Heights City Staff,

Below is the response to comments for The Enclave Preliminary Plat, received on May 14, 2021. All met
comments have been removed from this list, the City’s updated comments are in red, and response to
comment is in bold.

Planning & Development

16.

17.

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall add a note indicating that on this plat dedication page Tract
2 is composed of Drainage Tracts A-E as referenced in Ordinance 2021-19 and that Tract 1 is
composed of Tract F as referenced in Ordinance 2021-19. Applicant’s response meets the
request, However, please correct the typo in the 3.1 Table such that for Tract 2 the Ordinance
2021-19 call outs were Drainage Tracts A-E

Table has been updated.

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall clarify the limits of the called “Drainage Reserve” and
annotate the hatched Floodway area. Applicant’s response meets the request. Applicant shall
clarify what area the term “Drainage Reserve” and annotated on the plat dedication page just
north of the platted area is calling out. Please remove said offsite term from the plat dedication
page if it does not indicate something already in existence and is not part of this plat.

Recording information has been added for the Drainage Reserve.

Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall provide utility easements for the existing sanitary sewer lines
and services (Lot 12, Block 2; Tracts 1 & 2, Lots 19-22, Block 1) or annotate on the engineering
sheets what the intent is for the offsite services. Applicant’s response meets the request.
Applicant shall also clarify the unconnected manhole illustrated in Lot 24, Block 1. Applicant is
advised that when the construction plans are submitted, the proposed sewer service relocation
between Lots 9 -10, Block 2 shall be installed such that it does not cross the services to either Lot

www.republiceds.com Texas Engineering Firm F-21633



(RYREPUBLIC

ENGINEERING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

9 or 10 (may require the double connection to service Lot 10 and the offsite lot and a single
connection for Lot 9).
Unconnected manhole was a drafting error and has been removed. Final design will align

services so that no services cross.

19. Drainage Report: Applicant shall provide pre and post development drainage calculations for
Q100. Partially Met. The applicant has annotated two different drainage basins as DA-2 for post
development drainage calculations (annotations on Sheets 2 & 3 don’t appear to match). Please
clarify which calculations in the report corresponded to each illustrated drainage basin. Also
clarify/address how the impact of the increase in flows and new point discharge from DA-3 shown
in the drainage report will be mitigated (i.e. add a statement regarding energy dissipation and
timing of discharge).

Sheets 2 & 3 both have a “DA-2". Sheet 2 is labeled DA-2 POST while Sheet 3 is labeled DA-2
STORM. The two areas are not meant to represent the same areas. The preliminary drainage
report only calculates pre- vs. post-development flows. Internal storm drain calculations will

be part of the final drainage report accompanying the construction plan submittal.

While there will be an increase from DA-3, the overall flow in the creek, in which DA-3
discharges into, will be reduced. This is accomplished by releasing the storm water from DA-3
before the peak flow passes through the creek. All flow from DA-3 will have engineered energy

dissipation to prevent erosion.

20. Engineering Sheet 3: Applicant shall provide connectivity such that the proposed northern inlet
system outfalls in the downstream direction. Applicant’s response meets the request Be advised
that an analysis of the proposed infrastructure and outfall will be required in the construction
plan submission as indicated in Engineer Note #3

Understood.

Public Works, Mark Hyde

All Comments Met

Consulting Engineer, Otto Wiederhold

All Comments Met

Fire Marshal, Brad Alley

No Comments

www.republiceds.com Texas Engineering Firm F-21633



Building Official, Mike Beard

No Comments

ONCOR, Derex Spencer

No Comments.

Century Link, Chris McGuire

No Comments.

Time Warner Cable/Spectrum, Shaun Whitehead

No Comments.

ATMOS, Burton Jones

No Response

TXDOT

No Response

Sincerely,

Joseph Theriot, P.E.

www.republiceds.com

(RYREPUBLIC

ENGINEERING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Texas Engineering Firm F-21633



Hark CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM

* Hei AGENDA ITEM #IX-2

FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER DATE: JUNE 8§, 2021

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING THE WAIVER OF INTEREST ON LIENS IN
THE AMOUNT OF $5.389.37 ON PROPERTY KNOWN AS 1416 SHOSHONI TRAIL,
HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE
ACTION.

EXPLANATION:

The property known as 1416 Shoshoni was purchased by Jeff Lackmeyer of Lackmeyer
Construction, LLC, at a Sherriff’s sale for delinquent taxes on the property. Mr. Lackmeyer
cleared the overgrown property, subdivided the property, and built two structures on the property.
Recently, in looking at selling one of the structures, the City’s liens on the property were
discovered.

The City has issued nine liens on the property prior to Mr. Lackmeyer’s purchase of the property.
The last being in 2018. The nine liens total $2,390.00 in value and with interest are now valued at
$7,779.37. Mr. Lackmeyer requested that the interest be removed from the liens on the lot in 2016,
but Council denied that request and so he did not purchase the property. He later acquired the lot
at a Sheriff’s sale at which time the liens were assumed to be wiped from the books per the Title
Company. In reviewing the sale document, it is the City Attorney’s position that the document
did not clear the City’s liens in this case.

The two structures that Mr. Lackmeyer has constructed on the properties are valued at: $308,164
and $344,169 respectively in 2021. Taxes on the properties total: $7,139.77 and $7,973.49
respectively. City taxes are $2,086.27 and $2,329.89 in 2021.

Staff supports waiving the interest on all City liens on the property to the principle amount of
$2,390.00.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval.

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL:
1. Motion to APPROVE/DISAPPROVE the waiver of interest on liens in the amount of
$5.389.37 on property known as 1416 Shoshoni Trail, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas.
2. Any other action desired.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Lien information
2. Photos of the structures on the lots




The City of Harker Heights

Prepared by: Susan Crawley

2/11/2020
Original Invoice Interest Current
Account Name Amount Code Violation Lien Date Accrued Balance
1416 Shoshoni Trail
1 Dillard, Franklin S 530.00 high grass/weeds & cleaning 9/22/00 $ 2,368.92 S 2,898.92
2 Dillard, Franklin S 550.00 high grass/weeds & cleaning 9/22/00 § 2,245.88 § 2,795.88
3 Dillard, Franklin S 110.00 high grass/weeds & cleaning 9/9/13 § 98.85 S 208.85
4 Dillard, Franklin S 200.00 high grass/weeds & cleaning 6/11/14 S 15043 $S 350.43
S Dillard, Franklin S 200.00 high grass/weeds & cleaning 9/12/14 § 14348 § 343.48
6 Dillard, Franklin S 200.00 high grass/weeds & cleaning 8/3/1s 5 12128 S 321.28
7 Dillard, Franklin S 200.00 high grass/weeds & cleaning 1/19/16 § 108.66 § 308.66
8 Dillard, Franklin S 200.00 high grass/weeds & cleaning 10/14/16 $ 90.66 S 290.66
9 Dillard, Franklin S 200.00 high grass/weeds & cleaning 2/23/18 $ 61.21 $ 261.21
S 2,390.00 7,779.37






Hark ) CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM

Hel AGENDA ITEM # IX-3

FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER DATE: JUNE 8,2021

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER _APPROVING AN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
INCENTIVE AGREEMENT WITH GAMBIT SOCIAL HOUSE, INC. (“GAMBIT”) FOR
THE ADMINISTRATION OF ONE OR MORE PROGRAMS FOR MAKING GRANTS
OR LOANS OF PUBLIC MONEY TO PROMOTE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND
STIMULATE BUSINESS AND COMMERCIAL ACTIVITIES WITHIN THE CITY; AND
AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN THE AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF
THE CITY AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION.

BACKGROUND:
The purpose of this 380 Agreement is to define the guidelines and incentives granted by the City
and outline the obligations for Gambit Social House, Inc. (“Gambit™) in this project.

Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code allows the City to establish and provide for the
administration of one or more programs for making grants or loans of public money to promote
economic development.

This Agreement provides reasonable and adequate safeguards to ensure that the public receives
sufficient benefits in exchange for the Incentives.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval.

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL:

1. Motion to APPROVE/DISAPPROVE an economic development incentive agreement with
Gambit Social House, Inc. for the administration of one or more programs for making
grants or loans of public money to promote economic development and stimulate business
and commercial activities within the City; and authorize the City Manager to sign the
agreement on behalf of the City.

2. Any other action desired.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Economic Development Incentive Agreement

Page 1 of 1



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT AGREEMENT

This Economic Development Grant Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and
between the CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS (“City”) and GAMBIT SOCIAL
HOUSE, INC. (“Gambit™). The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the terms under which
the City will make certain economic development grants to Gambit.

The City is authorized by Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code to establish
and provide for the administration of one or more programs for making grants or loans of public
money to promote economic development and stimulate business and commercial activities within
the City. The grants described herein are made for that purpose.

The parties agree as follows:
L
MAXIMUM GRANT LIMIT
1. The cumulative amount of grant payments to be made under this Agreement shall

not exceed $150,299.00. Once the cumulative amount of economic development grants (real
property economic development grants plus sales related economic development grants) equals
$150,299.00, the City shall have no further obligation to pay grants under this Agreement and the
Agreement will terminate.

I
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT — GAMBIT COMMITMENTS

1. Gambit agrees to construct taxable improvements as described herein on the tract
of property located within the city limits of the City which is described on Exhibit “A”
(“Premises”). The real property improvements and taxable personal property which are to be
constructed, placed, and maintained on the Premises shall be referred to herein as the “Project
Improvements.” These Project Improvements that Gambit agrees to construct shall include a
12,000 square foot entertainment venue which will house a beer tap room, restaurant, nine-hole
miniature golf course, eight escape rooms and a 400 square foot event space. The Project
Improvements that Gambit agrees to construct shall also include 3 outside axe throwing lanes,
beach volleyball facilities, and other games and seating areas on the Premises. Gambit agrees to
complete construction and placement of the Project Improvements having a value as described in
Paragraph 2 below on or before March 31, 2022.

2. In consideration for the economic development grants provided for in this
Agreement, Gambit agrees to make a minimum investment of $2,000,000.00 in the Project
Improvements, so as to add at least $2,000,000.00 of appraised value (over the 2021 appraised
value of the Premises), for ad valorem property tax purposes, as certified by the Bell County
Appraisal District, to the City of Harker Heights ad valorem tax rolls beginning in the tax year
2022. Gambit agrees to provide the City with a description of the taxable improvements
constructed or placed by Gambit on the Premises and to do so by the 15th day of January 2023.

1



Gambit further agrees to maintain taxable property of a total value of at least $2,000,000.00 on the
Premises for each of the five tax years (2022 through 2026) for which the City has agreed to
provide grants under this Agreement.

3. Gambit further agrees to employ a staff described as follows beginning on or before
January 1, 2022 and continuing through December 31, 2026:

35 servers;

15 bartenders;

6 hostesses;

15 cooks;

5 dishwashers;

25 event and game masters;
6 managers.

III.
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANTS

1. The economic development grants to be made under this Agreement are based upon
investments that Gambit agrees to make that will generate economic activity within the City and
the sales activity occurring after the construction of such improvements. The City agrees to make
certain economic development grants to Gambit to be calculated based upon a percentage of the
ad valorem property taxes assessed by the City (and paid by Gambit) upon Project Improvements
(“Property Taxes”). Further, as set forth below, the City agrees to make certain economic
development grants to Gambit in amounts based upon a percentage of City sales tax revenues
collected by Gambit, less any refunds by Gambit or required to be made by the City (“Sales
Taxes”). Subject to the performance by Gambit of its obligations hereunder, and subject to the
conditions of this Agreement, the City agrees to make the following economic development grants
to Gambit:

A. GRANTS RELATING TO REAL PROPERTY IMPROVEMENTS (REAL
PROPERTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANTS):

1. The City will make a real property economic development grant in an
amount equal to 50% of the City Property Taxes timely paid by Gambit for the tax year 2022;

2. The City will make a real property economic development grant in an
amount equal to 50% of the City Property Taxes timely paid by Gambit for the tax year 2023;

3. The City will make a real property economic development grant in an
amount equal to 50% of the City Property Taxes timely paid by Gambit for the tax year 2024;

4. The City will make a real property economic development grant in an
amount equal to 50% of the City Property Taxes timely paid by Gambit for the tax year 2025;



5. The City will make a real property economic development grant in an
amount equal to 50% of the City Property Taxes timely paid by Gambit for the tax year 2026.

Grants payable hereunder shall be paid for each year of this Agreement within 45
days after Gambit has provided written notice to the City that it has made timely payment of the
ad valorem property taxes assessed by the City for such year and a written request for payment of
the real property economic development grant for such year. No grant payment shall be made for
any year in which Gambit fails to make timely payment of property taxes and no grant shall be
paid upon penalties or fees assessed because of a failure to timely pay taxes. No grant shall be
paid before Gambit timely makes payment of City ad valorem property taxes.

B. GRANT CALCULATED BASED UPON SALES TAXES (SALES RELATED
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANTS):

“Gambit Net Sales Tax Revenues” as used in this Agreement shall mean City sales
tax revenues collected by Gambit at its place of business in the City of Harker Heights that are
remitted to and received by the City less any refunds by Gambit or refunds required to be made by
the City.

1. The City will make a sales related economic development grant in an
amount of 50% of the Gambit City Net Sales Tax Revenues for the year 2022;

2. The City will make a sales related economic development grant in an
amount of 50% of the Gambit City Net Sales Tax Revenues for the year 2023;

3. The City will make a sales related economic development grant in an
amount of 50% of the Gambit City Net Sales Tax Revenues for the year 2024;

4. The City will make a sales related economic development grant in an
amount of 50% of the Gambit City Net Sales Tax Revenues for the year 2025;

5. The City will make a sales related economic development grant in an
amount of 50% of the Gambit City Net Sales Tax Revenues for the year 2026.

To obtain payment of a sales related economic development grant for any year of
this Agreement, Gambit shall provide notice to the City of the amount of Gambit Net Sales Tax
Revenue collected by Gambit from the taxable retail sales of Gambit from the Premises in the
previous calendar year and a request for payment of the sales related economic development grant.
Within 30 days of receiving the request and notice, the City shall review such information and
confirm the Net Sales Tax Revenue information. Gambit shall cooperate with the City to determine
the amount of Net Sales Tax Revenue. The City shall make the sales related grant within 60 days
after receiving Gambits’ notice and request.



V.
REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANTS

1. The economic development grants described herein are subject to the following
requirements and conditions:

A. Project improvements with an appraised value of at least $2,000,000.00 must be
fully constructed and in place prior to March 31, 2022.

B. All construction of Project Improvements must be made in compliance with all City
ordinances and state law.

C. Gambit must operate its retail business on the Premises for the entire term of this
Agreement.
D. Gambit will maintain and repair all of the Project Improvements as necessary to

keep the same in good working order for the entire term of this Agreement.

E. Gambit must pay all ad valorem and sales taxes prior to such taxes becoming
delinquent. Gambit shall have the right to contest tax appraisals or taxes through the procedures
provided by the Texas Tax Code. Gambit shall promptly pay, prior to their becoming delinquent
all property taxes which it is not so contesting unless it is required by law to pay the contested
taxes as a part of the contest procedure. Should Gambit contest tax appraisals or taxes, it shall
notify the City of Harker Heights immediately of the contest and keep the City updated on status
thereof. Such contest must be diligently pursued by Gambit. If Gambits’ contest is unsuccessful,
Gambit shall promptly pay any taxes and penalties/interest resulting therefrom.

F. Construction on the Project Improvements will be full completed and fully
operational on or before the 31st day of March 2022.

G. The employment requirements described in Paragraph I (3) above shall continue to
be met for the entire term of this Agreement.

H. The cumulative amount of grant payments to be made under this Agreement shall
not exceed $150,299.00. Once the cumulative amount of economic development grants (real
property economic development grants plus sales related economic development grants) equals
$150,299.00, the City shall have no further obligation to pay grants under this Agreement and the
Agreement will terminate.

V.
COMPLIANCE

Gambit binds itself hereby to construct Project Improvements of the value and within the
time frame required by this Agreement. Gambit acknowledges and agrees that the purpose of this
Agreement is to encourage economic development in the City and Gambit covenants that all uses
of the Premises shall be consistent with the general purpose of encouraging development within



the City during the period that this Agreement is in effect. Gambit shall comply with any
reasonable request of the City for information relating to the improvements made by Gambit or
compliance by Gambit of its obligations hereunder. Gambit shall cooperate in regard to any audit
or inspection by the City to assure compliance by Gambit. Gambit shall also provide the City’s
designated employees or consultants with access to inspect the Premises to ensure that
improvements as required herein are being maintained in accordance with the provisions of this
Agreement. Such inspection shall not interfere with the business operations of Gambit and shall
not occur more than twice per calendar year.

VI
TERMINATION AND RECOUPMENT OF INCENTIVE

This Agreement terminates and is cancelled at the end of the contract term unless cancelled
earlier as set forth below. In the event Gambit fails to maintain taxable property of a total value
of at least $2,000,000.00 as determined by the Bell County Appraisal District on the City of Harker
Heights ad valorem tax rolls for any year for which the City has otherwise agreed to provide an
economic development grant under this Agreement, this Agreement will terminate and be
cancelled. Further, if Gambit fails to maintain the employment level for any of the positions
described in paragraph II (3) above for a period of more than 30 consecutive days during the term
of this Agreement, the Agreement will terminate and be cancelled. In the event this Agreement is
terminated and cancelled because of the failure of Gambit maintain property values or employment
levels as required by this Agreement, Gambit shall be obligated to repay and reimburse the City
an amount equal to all grants which have been made pursuant to this Agreement.

VIIL
TERM

Unless terminated earlier by the provisions hereof or by the parties, this Agreement shall
terminate after the City has paid all economic development grants for the year 2027 as provided
herein.

VIIL
ATTORNEY'’S FEES

If, on account of any breach or default by Gambit on its obligations under the provisions
of this Agreement, it shall be necessary for the City to employ an attorney or attorneys to enforce
or defend any of its rights or remedies hereunder, should the City prevail, the City shall be entitled
to all reasonable attorney’s fees, costs and expenses it incurs in connection therewith.

IX.
VENUE AND CONTROLLING LAW

Texas law shall govern interpretation of this Agreement and all disputes hereunder. This
Agreement is performable, and shall be performed, in Bell County, Texas. Venue to any dispute
between the parties shall be in Bell County, Texas.



X.
AMENDMENT

No amendment, modification, or alterations of the terms hereof shall be binding unless the
same be in writing, dated subsequent to the date of this Agreement and is duly executed by both
parties.

XI.
SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, such
provision shall automatically be deleted from the Agreement and the legality, validity or
enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be affected.

XII.
PRIOR AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED

This Agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement of the parties herein with respect
to the subject matter hereof and supersedes any prior understanding or written or oral agreements
between the parties respecting the subject matter hereof.

XIII.
NO WAIVER

No waiver by the City or Gambit of any event of default or breach of any covenant,
condition or agreement herein contained shall be treated as a waiver of any subsequent default or
breach of the same or any covenant, condition, or agreement.

XIV.
ASSIGNMENT

This Agreement may not be assigned by Gambit without prior written consent of the City
of Harker Heights.

XV.
Notice
17. All notices provided hereunder shall be given by both email and certified mail,
return receipt requested as follows:
To the City of Harker Heights c/o David Mitchell, City Manager

City Hall

305 Millers Crossing

Harker Heights, TX 76548

Email: dmitchell@ci.harker-heights.tx.us




To Gambit Social House, Inc.c/o

512 S. 2nd St.
Killeen, TX 76541
Email:

EXECUTED on this the day of , 2021.

CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS

By:
David Mitchell, City Manager

ATTEST:
City Secretary

GAMBIT SOCIAL HOUSE, INC.

By:

Print Name:

Title:




Hark d CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM

AGENDA ITEM #IX-4

FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER DATE: JUNE 8, 2021

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN THE
UPDATED BELL COUNTY COMMUICATIONS CENTER 9-1-1 AGREEMENT AND
TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION.

EXPLANATION:

The Bell County Communications Center handles all emergency 9-1-1 calls for all entities in Bell
County. The Communications Center is housed at 708 W. Ave O in Belton. The Bell County
Communications Center is run under an agreement between Bell County, Killeen, Temple, Harker
Heights, and Belton. Under the agreement, the Center is funded by each entity per the number of
law enforcement “events” each entity has. Bell County pays one-half of all of the Centers expenses
and pays for all events in the County. For examples, an “event” occurs every time officers are
dispatched to an incident or communicate a status such as doing a security check on a business at
night. The most recent budget allocations for the Center are as follows:

Killeen $1,700,502.00

Temple $1,049,165.00

Harker Heights $ 398,778.00

Belton $ 329,941.00

Bell County $ 1,268,968.00 (Bell County Pays for County events)

Bell County $ 4,747,355.00 (Bell County Pays Yz of operating cost of Center)
Total $ 9,494,709.00

The original Agreement for the Bell County Communications Center was entered into on October
1, 2002. The E-Board (established in the Agreement), which is comprised of the Bell County
Judge and the City Managers of the four cities, has been working on correcting some issues in the
original agreement from 2002. Items revised in the Agreement are provided as Attachment one to
this memo. A redlined copy of the Agreement is provided as Attachment two to this memo.

Bell County has already reviewed and approved the Agreement. Fellow cities are scheduled to
approve the Agreement in early June.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval.

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL:
1. Motion to APPROVE/DISAPPROVE the updated Bell County Communications Center
9-1-1 Agreement and authorize the City Manager to sign on behalf of the City.
2. Any other action desired.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Notes of Revisions and Updates to the Agreement
2. Redline Copy of the Agreement




COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM AGREEMENT

Notes of Revisions/Updates

Table of Contents - Multiple changes to reflect wording changes in body of
agreement. Removal of Exhibit A and B from Table of Contents.

AMENDMENT (pg1:9-14) - Changed date of amendment and restatement to
current effective date.

Section 1 (pg2:13-14) - Added members of the RBO as Parties to the agreement.

Section 1 (pg2:18) — Added the County as being provided services by the
System.

Section 3.A.1.a (pg4:33-38) — Changed order of rotation of Vice-Chair.

Section 3.B (pg5:18) - Changed wording from “Comptroller” of System to
“Auditor” of System.

Section 3.D (pg6:8-9) - System Director-Added language “...the County Judge
shall seek the advice and counsel of the Board before making an appointment.”

Section 3.D.6 (pg6:29-33) - System Director/Reports to the Board-Added
specifics “(a)...Notice...of any emergency expenditures...within 7 days, or as
soon as practicable.” (b) Monthly member event count reports (c)
Notifications...required by Section 4.F.

Section 3.E (pg6:49-7:42) - RBO-Updated list of member agencies.

Section 3.E (pg7:45-47) - RBO Entities-Added language “The Fort Hood Public
Safety and Fire Departments and Bell County Communications Center Medical
Director may also attend as a contributor (non-voting) to the RBO".

Section 3.E.1.a (pg8:6-16) - RBO Board-Changed the number of voting RBO
members from 7 to 11 with each member city having both the Police Chief and
Fire Chief now listed as voting members.

Section 3.E.1.d (pg9:3-11) - RBO Secretary/System Director Minutes/Agendas-
Agendas and supporting documents for meetings will be sent out at least 7
calendar days in advance. This was changed from 3 calendar days.

Section 3.F.1 (pg9:17-18) - Updated System Board meeting schedule to “last
Thursday of every odd numbered month”.



Section 3.F.2 (pg10:3-10) - Updated RBO Board meeting schedule to “bi-monthly
of the last Monday of each odd numbered month”. Included statement that
additional meetings may be requested by the Chair “or by any two members of
the RBO Board”.

Section 3.F.2 (pg10:21-22) - Defined quorum for RBO Board voting purposes.

Section 3.F.2 (pg10:26-29) - Added language to define role of RBO
subcommittees.

Section 3.F.7 (pg11:11-15) - Added voting section and defined “per capita” and
“majority interest.”

Section 4.C.1 (pg12:49-13:3) - Included due date of System Budget to the Cities
and County of May 15t for FY beginning October 15t.

Section 4.C.4 (pg13:13-15) - Added language that the County Judge “shall” seek
advice and counsel from the System Board in the appointment of the System
Director.

Section 4.F (pg13:39-45) - Added “Duty to Notify Protocol Changes” section.
Section 6.A (pg14:24-25) — Removed exception to effective date of fiscal year.
Section 6.B.7 (pg15:25-40) - Defined “Capital Costs”.

Section 8 (pg18:27) - Specified dollar threshold of more than $100,000 for
equipment expenses or equipment that is part of the backbone as County

expenses.

Section 8 (pg18:35-36) — Added wording for System Components approval by
System Director to confirm compatibility.

Section 10.E (pg20:22-24) — Added “Review of Agreement” section.

Section 14.A (pg21:21-30) — The System will approve the capital cost buy-in of a
new party to the agreement.

Section 17 (pg22:33) - Removed “Tax Exempt bonds” section.

Exhibit “B(1)” (pgB-1:4-14) - Established definition of “Events” and updated
estimated assessment percentages.



o ~NOO O, WN =

AR B W W WWWWWWWWNMNRNRDNMNRNNDRNNRD=2 2 a a A a
N -0 00 ~NOOAOPWON=20OO~NOOPRWN-=2O0OONOORWN--=O®

S N
>R ®

- 1 8/17/2020
COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM AGREEMENT
TABLE OF CONTENTS
RECITALS__ PAGE
Section'l. Resiatemant ani Reclals . ....cnviiorimisnsms i 1
[l s T el N MO S T z
Section 2.  Designation of System Operator...............coooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeiiiiieee 2
Section 3.  CoVerNanNee st st it izl e T s s s s MG iss 3
A. BAAof Dire Clors. oo mmmene iesie Wi i it e 3
1 Officers of Board of Directors .. w38 . digma ool ..o 4
(a) Designation of Officers.........ccoceiiiiiiiieeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiee i, 4
(D)  Duty of OffiCers ciciu .o iitrones hornsssessssseaseaiborsssnsrrarssessassans 5
(1) Chairand VIiCEiChair. ool s BT . soeassasasssssosess D
(2) Serretany. ... h e s iitises s sssssssssssssssesssssssssssss 5
B. GomptrellerAuditor of SystoME. ... 0h ... .Sl T it 5
C. Attorney for the System.... . ..ot S e e 6
D. SVSIem. DIreCto G g M i Mol e s e s 6
E. Redulatory Boardior Operation e. ot e s iisss s ssssss s sspbninass 7
1. RBO Board ... ... coveeuneee e Mt s osoesvosssassnnsssessssssssssasssvsssssssassansns 8
(a) BTk MeRHErS i et ikt wiiaas il 8
()4 RBO BoardiOffiCers. ... .o s rrmrsassssnszessesisssssszssmzsssssassssass 8
(c) Dutiessof Chalkand Vice-Chail e i, 9
W) | OOBTE ATV i i B i i e e e i gy 9
F. Meetings of System Board of Directors, RBO, and RBO Board............... 9
1. Meetings of the System Board of Directors ..............cocccooeiiiiiin.... 9
2. Meetings of the RBO Membership and RBOBoard ..................... 10
3 Meelihg Rulessauamann s s s 10
4, RO S it s S s vt S i e R i S N Eais 10
5 G CYETON, dommenspomtmionsihbsiin s ey gy s gt ve wksmysn seweisd isinenks 10
6. Representation of the Regulatory Board of Operations................ 1)
ik e R N0 SOV URSNROUE RS TS tets | YRR = 11
SeBlioh 4. IpReWers ahd Diles rausassiniia i el s s v ol S e iy e dats 3 i
A. Authority of the County........oooo e 11
B. Communications Services to Other Agencies................cccooeeeeiiiceeennnn... 12
C. Avthotityrof the Board of DireClors s s i itz s 12
D. Advisory Authority of the RBO. queusssssissssesimspssssisissssnss isiasussssspssssis 13
E. User Committeas . b il ism i sesa il s naisiliiiis 13
el o o[ T — 13

Commumcatlons Svstem Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (OOZ)Gemmuﬁ-:eaw:rs—Svstem—




o ~NO O WN =

S G
= O ©

N NN N =2 a2 a3 e o
WN =20 000~k WwN

N NN NN
o ~N O ;o b~

W W WwwwmN
B WN - OO

A Dbk DbWWWwWwWw
A B WON-20 O~ WO,

B
~N o

Section 6.  Fiscal Yearand Annual Budget.................ccooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiee 14
A. FiSeal B s oot o e i s e e sl et oo oo - s 14
B. ANNUAT B UL OB e s ot i ot s s s o b ot 14
C. Tl = =T e S S Y 15
1. Payiment Ol A eSS e i i v i i o T i b 15
D Budget Authority of DireCtor ... 16
Seclioh 7. Peorsonnelimi i is st i vt s s 17
A. 1811 = T o At T ———— T
B. Supervisoryand Operations PoSHIONS suasiicis s i i it i 17
——GC—DispatcherPositions
B Salaries and BenelilSaue siramnani oy a0 e W s 17
Section 8.  Capital Assets and AcqUISItioNS ... i 4
Section 9. Term of AQreemMent ... 18
Section 10. Termination or Withdrawal o .o B o BB s iosissisins Bhsvsssenssssssasssssss 18
A. RI=Ta04]1 9= | ([0 o IR, . ST, TR AT —— 18
B. NURHOAWA oo s olle T o vivs 5 Wce s il in e i i i 19
C. Legal Redress......coezesenne il obiie e sse b ee s Bia e oo HA e e oo cssssassssessssssansysssssns 19
D, Use of System and SystempAsSSels .. S i ... 0 e inaaiesisiiensaiseiisis 19
E. Review of Agreement...c.... .. B, W eis o T sssssssasssiips sivssssassassanissssnsss 19
SachHon 11. - DISSollon ce W o ML B i s S e 20
Section 12, . Disposillonlor ASSols e 20
A. Process Of VDA DGR 0 i i bivisibisas o s siass 20
B. Asset Distribution ..............ccoooooiiiiii 20
Section 13. Amendment to AQreement ... 20
Section 14-.. Additional Parties to Agreement.............cccoviiiiniiiiiiiiniiiiieiiiiei e 20
A. B U T o oo e vasiosessnssonansnsnionsosanssiosuasnsasssssnsnsssnsssssssasasassasssnssssansassusssss 20
B. ERR Ve IO e st s iaiens o otve s gz e s g e ciiese o s ieard o o 2 20
= el o L 1= e B (oo ) < T ——— 21
Section 16. Severability; Compliance with Applicable Law ..................ccccoooiiivvinen.... 21
Section 17. Tax-ExemptBonds
Seelon-18.—Force MaCUre. .. cu v i s iisiimsin sl i s usss s issi 22
b n el g B g s 1 T ——— A-1
Exmipit B (A ssessment ParBemanes ). ..o wuiiiilialvisiailiieinontiviim it B-1

ommumcauons System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Cemmunications-System-Agreement redline-2005-to-2021—

ystem-Agreementredliine-2005-to-2021-doex6lB0896-BELL —Comparison-Communieations—



00 ~NO OB WN -

BB BB DD DB WWWWWWWWWWMNMNMNNNNDNDNRNDRLD-= 2 2 2 a2 a3
N Ok, ON—2O0O 000N WN-=20OWONOOORAWN-=2OOO~NOOOOG A WN-=S O O©

AGREEMENT

THE STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF BELL

AMENDMENT

The following is an amendment and restatement of this Agreement, taking into
account amendments approved by the Cities of Belton, Harker Heights, Killeen and
Temple, Texas (the “Cities”) and Bell County, Texas (the “County”). The amendment
took effect on . 2020, the date of final approval by the County and the
Cities in _accordance with Section 13 hereof. The original Agreement was dated
October 1, 2002.

In order to establish, operate and maintain a consolidated communications system
for the cities of Belton, Harker Heights, Killeen, and Temple, Texas (the "Cities"), and
throughout Bell County, Texas (the "County"), including the communities and agencies
served by the Bell County Sheriff's Office (including but not limited to those entities which
are part of the RBO as defined in Section 3£3E), the parties agree to the following:

This agreement, entered into this day of in
the year 20022020 by and among the Cities, and the County is entered into pursuant to
the provisions of Texas Government Code Ann. § 791.001 et seq (Vernon Supp. 1992)
(the "Act") relating to joint exercise of powers, for the purpose of operating and
maintaining a consolidated communications system. The Cities and the County shall
sometimes be referred to herein as the "Parties".

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the County has purchased and provided a trunked 800 Megahertz
Public Radio System for the express purpose of the support of public health and safety;
and

WHEREAS, the County has purchased and provided a computer system to provide
Computer Aided Dispatch, police, fire and record management systems; and

WHEREAS, the County has purchased and provided a central facility to
accommodate the consolidation of public health and safety communications for the
County; and

WHEREAS, the Parties are each empowered by law to staff, maintain, and operate
public buildings and related facilities for the purposes of public health and safety
communications, all of which are proper "governmental functions and services" as defined
in the Act; and

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Communications-System-Agreementredline-2005-t0-2021—
{002)Communications-Systerm-Agreementredline 2005t0-2021-deexCommunications-Agreement-042221-draft TE -1-




oO~NO R WN =

AN D DD DD DR DD WOWWOWWOWWOWWWRNNNRIMNMNRMNDRNRNNN-S & 8 3 o
© 0O ~NOO AP WUN=20 0 0ONOOO PR WN-=2OOOONOO O BE WN=2O0O OONOOOO B WN -2 O O

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to operate and maintain a consolidated county-wide
public health and safety communications facility (hereinafter referred to as the "System"),
and to provide an orderly method for the accomplishment thereof; and

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to accomplish the aforesaid purposes by jointly
exercising their common powers in the manner set forth in this agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties, for and in consideration of the mutual benefits,
promises and agreements set forth herein, agree as follows:

Section 1. Purposes

The purpose of this agreement is to provide for the establishment, operation and
maintenance of a consolidated County-wide communications system (hereinafter, the
"System") by constructing, equipping, staffing, maintaining, and operating a facility or
facilities which provide call receiving and dispatching services to the Parties and members
of the RBO, by providing computers, radio systems and other equipment , and by further
providing the System to the Parties. A description of the initial System is attached hereto
as Exhibit "A".

governmental entities, volunteer fire departments, EMS providers or other persons
providing public health and/or safety services with the County to serve as the contract
party for all such persons. Other services may be provided to other entities so long as
there is no degradation of public health and/or safety services. Contracts may further be
entered as provided in Section 4B regarding the extension of services beyond those
rendered to the contracting Parties, as part of the authorized purposes hereunder.

This agreement also establishes and provides a forum for discussion, study,
development and implementation of programs and services of mutual public health and
safety communications interest.

This agreement is made pursuant to and under the provisions of the Act relative to
the joint exercise of powers common to the County and the Cities.

Section 2. Designation of System Operator

Pursuant to and under the provisions of the Act, the Parties hereby appoint the
County to serve as system operator. In that regard, the County shall have overall
responsibility for System quality. The Parties acknowledge that System quality is subject
to cost efficiency and budget constraints, and that various sections of this agreement
impose requirements related to budget approval.

As System operator, the County shall provide staff (as employees of the County)
who shall be responsible for:

———A, Training;
—B. System Dispatch and Operations;
—C. System Maintenance;

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Cemmunications-System-Agreementredline 2005-t0- 2021
tee2Communications-System-Agreement-redline-2005-to-2021-deexCommunications-Agreement842221 draft TE -2-




00 ~NOO Ok wWwN =

A A P2 B2 P2 BR PR BB OGWWWWOWWOWOWWWRRNNMNNRODRODNDNNNN=2 22 O 2 a a a aaa
O 0 ~NO AR WN-=2000~NOOOPAWN=20O©ONOODOORAWN=2O0OONORAWN-=O©

—D. Undertaking such other duties as may be required by the System
Board of Directors (as defined below).

It is understood that the staff responsible for such functions, unless expressly
otherwise authorized herein, shall be employees of the County. Salaries and benefits
for all such persons shall be subject to the budget approval process set forth in Section 6
hereof.

Section 3. Governance
A. Board of Directors

The County and the Cities hereby establish a Board of Directors (the "Board"), for
the System, and delegate to the Board the responsibility to make policy for the System.
In carrying out its responsibility, the Board shall be subject to the following standards:

e — The System shall be intended to provide
comprehensive health and safety communications coverage to all
citizens of the County.

2. All System components shall be compatible with each
other.

(NOTE: See last sentence of Section 8 which reads, “All system
components must be approved by the System Director to confirm
compatibility with the System prior to the purchase of the same.)

— =23, The choice of System components and the operation
and maintenance of the System shall be based upon cost efficiency
(including budget constraints) and effectiveness, and upon a desire
to establish appropriate response to the health and safety needs of
the citizens of the County.

4. The Parties acknowledge that System quality is subject
to cost efficiency and budget constraints, and that various sections
of this agreement impose requirements related to budget approval.
These limitations shall not diminish the County's overall responsibility
for the System.

The System shall be governed by the Board as to those decisions reserved to the
Board in Section 4C or otherwise as expressly reserved to the Board herein. Except for
his or her such specific decisions, all other aspects of System governance are reserved
to the County. Each of the four Cities and the County (representing the County as a
whole) shall have one seat on the Board. Each City's seat shall be filled by the City
Manager of such City or his or her alternate. The County's seat shall be filled by the
County Judge or his or her alternate. A Board member shall cease to be a Director if
he/she ceases to hold office of the appointing Party, or if the appointing Party ceases to
be a "Party" to this agreement. Each Director shall notify the Secretary of the Board of
their respective alternates. The Secretary shall notify each Party of the designation of

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Commtnications-System-Agreementrediine2005-t0-2021—
1002} Cemmunicati stem-Agreementredline-2005-to-2021-deexCommunications-Agreement 04222 +-draft TE -3-




N N =

BWWWWWWWWWWNRNRNRNNDNNNNRN=S2 2 2 o A A o A
O OO ~NOOOPAWN-=20 00N RWN=OOO~NOOOREWN--=2O®O

B
N =

| 43

the other Parties' representatives and maintain an updated list of all Directors, alternates,
and the entities they represent. Each of the City Managers and County Judge shall
name his or her own alternate.

An alternate shall have the authority to vote in the name and stead of the person
appointing the same. Alternates shall only be appointed in writing, and shall only have
authority for the particular meetings for which appointment was made. Attendance by
any regular Board Member (i.e., County Judge or City Manager) at a meeting shall,
without the necessity of further action, revoke the authority given to any alternate of such
regular Board Member with regard to such meeting. The appointing Board Member(s)
shall have the right to change or revoke appointment of his or her designated alternate at
any time.

The Act of at least three Board members shall be deemed the act of the Board,
except as provided in Sections 4.C.1, 6.C.1. and 10. Each Board member shall have
one vote, per capita (except as otherwise provided herein in Section 4.C.1, Section 6.C.1.
and Section 10). The parties intend by this Section to require three votes to approve any
matter, and not just a majority of a quorum (i.e., two out of three votes shall not constitute
an act of the Board). Different voting requirements are set out in those specific
circumstances referred to in Sections 4.C.1., 6.C.1., or 10.

1, Officers of the Board of Directors
(a)  Designation of Officers

——_— — The officers of the Board shall be the Chair, the Vice-
Chair, and the Secretary.

The office of Chair shall be the County Judge. The System Director
(or, in the absence of the Director, a designated member of the
Director's staff) shall serve as Secretary of the Board. The office of
Vice-Chair shall be rotated on an annual basis, at the first meeting of
each fiscal year based on the following rotation, which shall continue
through the term of this agreement:

FISCAL YEAR VICE-CHAIR

02-03 -~ Temple
SN " —03-0419-20 Killeen
————04-0520-21

Belton
- —05-08621-22
Harker Heights
23-24 Temple

For all years after fiscal year 2006 —20062023 — 2024, the same rotation
shall be maintained.

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)€emmunications-System-Agreementredline-2005to-2021—

{002)Communications-System-Agreementredline-2005-t0-2021.deexCommunications-Agreement 04222 draflt TE -4-




O NGO B WN -~

h-h-h-hg-b##bwwwm@wwwwwl\)NNNNNNNNN—‘-—\—\—‘—\—\—\—\—‘—\
o N O, WN2000NOODADWON_LO0ODO000NODARWON_LOOONOOODEWN-2OO

(b)  Duty of Officers

(1) Chair and Vice-Chair

The Chair, or in his/her absence
the Vice-Chair, shall preside at and conduct all Board
meetings. In the absence or inability of the Chair to act, the
Vice-Chair shall act as the Chair.

(2) Secretary

The Secretary will give notice of regular meetings to the Board
at least fifteen (15) calendar days in advance of the scheduled
date. The Secretary will deliver the agenda and supporting
documentation to each Board member at least three (3)
calendar days prior to the meeting. The Secretary shall also
post notice of any meeting of the System Board in the manner
required by law, if any, and keep minutes of Board meetings.

In calculating "calendar days" the number of days shall
include both the first day and last day of the period in question,
and all days in between, regardiess if weekends or legal
holidays or otherwise (i.e., 20 calendar days from March 1
shall be March 20).

B. Auditor of the System

The County Auditor shall serve as Auditor for the System. Allocated costs for
these services shall be a part of the System budget. The County Auditor shall attend the
meetings of the Board of Directors and advise them in connection with any accounting,
budgetary, monetary or other financial matters relating to the System. The County
Auditor will assist the System Director in developing the annual budget and maintaining
accurate fiscal prdjections and accounts for the System.

- The Board may hire an independent auditor or financial consultant in the event of
a conflict of interest between the County Auditor and Board on a particular matter, or
otherwise as desnred by the Board.

The Couhty Auditor shall report to the Board, and be responsible to the Board, in
the conduct of his or her duties as they relate to the System.

The County Auditor shall establish the budget format for the System, establish and
maintain particular funds and accounts, and furnish monthly revenue, expenditures, and
funds status to the Board and Commissioners Court. In carrying out such functions, the
Auditor shall follow generally accepted accounting principles applicable to the County.
The Auditor shall make System books and records available to the Board, and to the
public to the extent required by law.




o ~NOO Ok WwWwN =

A b2 A B PA DB A BEWOOWWWOWOWOWOWOWWMNMNDNPDNNDNDNDNDNDNDRN=S 22 o o o a aaa
~NO R WON-2 0 00N WN-=20O0C0O~NOODOR~AWN=2OOOONOO O A WN-= O ©

BB
o o

C. Attorney for the System

The County Attorney shall be the Attorney for the System. Allocated costs for
these services shall be a part of the System budget. The Attorney shall advise the Board
in connection with any legal matters relating to the System, and shall attend meetings of
the Board as required to carry out his or her duties.

The Board may hire outside legal counsel in the event of a conflict of interest or
otherwise as desired by the Board.

The System Attorney shall report to the Board, and be responsible to the Board, in
the conduct of his or her duties as they relate to the System.

D. System Director

The System Director shall be appointed by the County Judge, in the manner
required by Section -4.C-4-4.C.4. However, the County Judge shall seek the advice
and counsel of the Board before making an appointment. The Director shall attend all
meetings of the Board as an advisory member. The Director shall be an employee of
the County. The Director shall be responsible for all operational and personnel matters
relating to the System. In particular, the Director shall:

— 1. enforce strict compliance with the approved annual
System budget and approve only expenditures authorized therein;

2. maintain an inventory of all property of the System and
serve as custodian of the property;

_ 3. have overall responsibility for the operation and
maintenance of the System, subject to the specific authority retained
herein by the Board, and the general supervisory authority of the

County;
1 serve as Secretary of the Board of Directors and of the
RBO.
—_— . establish and maintain the Standard Operational

Procedures for the System.

6. shall-provide reports to the Board:, to include, but not
limited to:

———a. _ Notification to the Board of any emergency
expenditures needed for the System within 7 days, or as soon as
practicable.

b. Monthly member event count reports

c. Notifications as might be required by Section 4.F.

The Director may establish user committee(s) to assist Director in the maintenance

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Cemmunications-System-Agreement redline-2005-to-2021—
(eb2Communieations-System-Agreement-redline-2005-to-2021- deexCommunications-Agreement-042221-draft TE -6-




O ~NOO P~ WN =

BOb R DR DS D R DG W MWW WO WWNRNRNRNRBRNMMBNMMNMRMNRMNS 3 & a3 a3
© OO N DA WN=2000NIOONROBN2OOODANTODANEDN-=-OOCO~NOOEWRN—= O ©

and operation of the System.

E. Regulatory Board of Operations

An advisory entity will be created, subordinate to the System Board (Board of
Directors), which is to be known as the Regulatory Board of Operations (hereinafter
referred to as the "RBO"). Membership will be comprised of the chief officer or designee
of each public safety agency receiving communications services from the System. Each
public safety agency will notify the Secretary of the RBO of the names of their respective
Chiefs or designees. The public safety agencies participating on the RBO include, but
are not limited to the following:

AMR Ambulance Service

-Acadian Ambulance Service

-Bartlett Police Department

-Bartlett Volunteer Fire Department

-Bell County Constable Office Pct. 1

-Bell County Constable Office Pct. 2

-Bell County Constable Office Pct. 3

-Bell County Constable Office Pct. 4

-Bell County Ceuntytiorney'sAttorney’s Office

-Bell County District Attorney’s Office

-Bell County Emergency Management

Bell County Sheriff's Department

Bell County Fire Marshall

Belton Police Department

Belton Fire Department

Central Texas College Police Department
-Harker Heights Police Department

Harker Heights Fire Department

—-Holland Police Department

Holland Volunteer Fire Department

—-Killeen Police Department

————————-Killeen Fire Department

Killeen Independent School District Police Department

Little River/Academy Police Department

Little River/Academy Volunteer Fire Department

Morgan's Point Resort Police Department

Morgan's Point Resort Volunteer Fire Department

Moffat Volunteer Fire Department

Nolanville Police Department

e e —-Nolanville (Central Bell) Volunteer Fire Department

Rogers Police Department

Rogers Volunteer Fire Department

-Salado Police Department
-Salado Volunteer Fire Department
-Southwest Bell Volunteer Fire Department

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Communications-System-~A

éeezﬁeemmumeaﬂen%SystemﬁAgfeemeﬂHe%ﬂe%%He%ﬂdechammumcatmns—Agreemeﬂt—MQ%H—éFa##E 2-




0 N O WN =

SE R RS DR DR DR R WO WWWWWWWWNRNNRNNNDNDNONNNDRNDRNODNDN=2 2 A 2 a2 A a o
0O ~NO O WN-=20000~NOOAOPRWN=20O0O~NOOORARWN-=2O0O©CONOOODOEA WN-= O ©

-Sparta Volunteer Fire Department

-Temple College Police Department
-Temple Police Department

-Temple Fire Department

-Texas A&M Central Texas Police Department

-Troy Police Department
Troy Volunteer Fire Department

-University of Mary Hardin-Baylor Police Department

The entities or departments listed above and not a part of the County or the four
citiesCities are referred to as the "Rural RBO Members"._ The Fort Hood Public Safety
and Fire Departments and Bell County Communications Center Medical Director may

also attend as a contributor (non-voting) to the RBO. Other entities that provide health

or safety services in the County may participate in the RBO upon the approving vote of

the RBO Board.

1.

RBO Board
(a) Board Members

The voting body of the RBO (hereinafter, the "RBO Board") shall
consist of seven(7eleven (11) members, chosen as follows:

- One (1) member shall be the Bell County Sheriff
- Each-Eight (8) members shall be the Fire Chief and Police

Chief from each of the four {(4)-Cities-shall-appoint-one{1)
member,

- Two (2) members (one being a fire chief and one being a
chief law enforcement officer) shall be elected by the Rural
(i.e., non-City) RBO Members

Secott-and White EMS-and Scott and White Helicopter Service may
each-have a non-voting-member onthe RBO Board.

In voting for the Rural RBO Board Members, each Rural RBO
department shall have one (1) vote.

RBO Board Members shall be elected or appointed annually, to
coincide with the System's fiscal year.

(b) RBO Board Officers
The RBO Board shall elect their Chair and Vice-Chair to conduct the

business of the RBO in the first meeting of each fiscal year. Each
officer will name his or her own alternate.

(002)Communications System-Agreement-redline 2005-te-2021.doexCemmunications-Agreement 042221 draft TE -8-



0N U AWN

BB DA DA DA DDA D DB D OWWOWWWWWWWWMRNRNMNMMMNMNMNMMMNMNNS 2 A & A v A
© OO NOOOAPRWN=OOO~NOURARWN=2OOCONDAPRERWN-=2OOO~NOOODOAWN-= O O©

In the event that the Chair or Vice-Chair ceases to be an employee
of their respective agency, they will cease to be a member of the
RBO Board, and the resulting vacancy shall be filled by the entities
which originally elected or appointed such RBO Board member at
the next regularly scheduled meeting which follows the occurrence
of the vacancy.

(c) Duties of Chair and Vice-Chair

The Chair shall preside at meetings of the RBO Board. Inthe
absence or inability of the Chair to act, the Vice-Chair shall act as the
Chair. The Chair, orin his/her absence the Vice-Chair, shall preside
at and conduct all meetings of the RBO Board.

(d) Secretary

The System Director (or in the absence of the Director, a
designated member of the Directer'sDirector’s staff) shall serve as
Secretary of the RBO Board. The Secretary shall send notice of
meetings of the RBO Board to its members, and shall keep minutes
of the meetings. The Secretary will deliver the agenda and
supporting documentation to each RBEO Board member at least three
{3seven (7) calendar days prior to the meeting. The Secretary shall
also post notice of any meeting of the RBO Board or UserRBO
Committees in the manner required by law, if any, and maintain the
minutes of committee meetings.

Fhe-System-Directorshall-also-serve-as-Secretary-of any-meeting-of
the-fullRBO membership.

Meetings of the System Board of Directors, RBO and RBO Board
{7 Meetings of the System Board of Directors

The Board shall conduct regular meetingsThursday—holding-at-least-one
regular-meeting-each-quarter-meetings on the last Thursday of every odd
numbered month. The first meeting after the start of each fiscal year shall
be the annual meeting. The date and hour of any regular meeting shall
be scheduled by order of the Board or by the Board Chair.

The Board shall provide for additional meetings as may be needed
depending upon the pressure of business. A called Board meeting shall
be called upon the request of the Chair or any two (2) Board members,
with the persons calling the meeting setting the date and hour thereof.
Absent an emergency, the Secretary of the Board shall give each Board
member at least three (3) calendar days notice of any specially called
Board meeting, such notice to set out the date, time, place, and proposed
subject matter of the meeting.

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Communications-System-Agreementredline2005-t0-2021—

{002)Communications



0O~ Ok WN =

P R e T - e C e S
O WN = O

W W W WWOWNDMNNDNDNNRNRNNRN=S O
QB WN =2 00 00~NOOG A WN-=2OO© ®~N

ol T R - - - S O I S I SV I N
© 00 N0 A WN-=20 O Ww~NO®

The location for the conduct of meetings shall be as determined by the
Board, and shall be the System's central dispatch building in the absence
of a contrary determination. Changes in the location must be made by
resolution of the Board or by the Chair, and notice of System Board
meetings shall be posted in compliance with applicable law.

2. Meetings of the RBO Membership and RBO Board

The RBO membership (including the RBO Board) shall conduct
regular meetings, holding at least one regular meeting every calendar
monthodd numbered months unless the RBO Board determines otherwise.
Unless otherwise agreed by the RBO Board, regular meetings of the RBO
Board shall be bi-monthly on the last Monday of each odd numbered
month. The RBO Board may provide for additional meetings as needed
depending upon the pressure of business and as may reasonably be
requested by the Chair of the RBO Board:, or by any two members of the
RBO Board. The date and hour of any regular meeting shall be scheduled
by order of the Chair of the RBO Board, a copy of the order to be filed with
the Secretary of the System Board of Directors. Absent a contrary
decision by the Chair of the RBO Board the location for the conduct of the
meetings shall be the System's central dispatch building. Absent an
emergency, the Secretary of the RBO shall give at least three (3) calendar
daysdays’ notice of each RBO meeting to the members of the RBO.

Only the RBO Board shall have voting rights as to any matter before the
RBO, and any vote of the RBO Board shall be deemed taken on behalf of
the RBO as a whole._ A maijority of the RBO Board shall constitute a
guorum of the RBO Board, and the vote of a majority of RBO Board
members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be

binding.

——The RBO Board may designate subcommittees for technical
or advisory projects, but subcommittees shall only make recommendations
or provide advice to the RBO Board, and the RBO Board must approve
subcommittee recommendations.

3. Meeting Rules

The System Board and the RBO Board shall adopt rules for
conducting their respective meetings and other business.

4. Minutes

———The Director (or in the absence of the Director, the designated
member of the Director's staff) shall keep minutes of regular, adjourned
regular and special meetings of both the System Board and the RBO Board.
A copy of the System Board minutes and RBO Board minutes shall be
provided to each System Board member, the System Director, and to each
RBO member.

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Cemmunications-System-Agreementredline-2005-t0-2021—
t002}Communications-System-Agreement-redline-2005-to-2021.deexCommunications-Agreement-042221-draft TE -10-



o ~NO O b wWwN >

 —— Y Quorum

A majority of the System Board determined per capita
constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business by the System Board.
A majority of the RBO Board determined per capita constitutes a quorum
for the transaction of business by the RBO Board.

—6. Representation of the Regulatory Board of Operations

-The Chairperson of the RBO Board will represent the RBO on
the Board of Directors. The RBO chair shall be a non-voting member of
the System Board of Directors, and shall attend all meetings of the System
Board.

f. Voting

For purposes of this Agreement, “per capita” means that each City and the
County shall have one vote each. “Maijority in interest” means a group of
Cities and/or the County whose “use percentage” (shown on Exhibit B)
exceeds in the aggregate more than fifty percent (50%) during the year at
which such vote is taken.

Section 4. Powers and Duties
A. Authority of the County

In accordance with the provisions of the Act, the Parties hereby delegate to the
County, subject to the authority of the Board as set forth in Section 4C hereof, or otherwise
expressly reserved herein, the power to acquire sites and construct, equip, staff, maintain,
operate and lease, real and personal property (whether tangible or intangible), and related
facilities (all being a part of the System) and to employ personnel or engage the services
of others, for the purpose of providing for public health and safety communications in the
County. ltis the intention of this paragraph that the County have complete authority to
carry out all activities related to the System, subject to the approval of the Board or the
other Parties only if such approval(s) are expressly set out elsewhere in this agreement.

In carrying out its responsibilities, the County shall be subject to the same
standards set forth in the first paragraph of Section 3A. As the provider of the System,
the County shall endeavor to meet desired quality standards established by the Parties
hereto, also taking into account cost efficiency, System effectiveness, budget constraints,
and System compatibility.

The County is authorized in its own name to perform all acts necessary for the
establishment, operation, and maintenance of the System, including, but not limited to,
any or all of the following:

1: to make and enter into contracts, it being understood
that all contracts regarding the System shall be entered in the name

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Cemmunications System-Agreement redline-2005+t0-2021—
{oe2lcemmunications-System-Agreement redline-2005-to-2021-doexCommunications-Agreement 042221 draft TE -11-




O NOOOADR WON -~

-
- O ©

= e A A
O O ~NOOO DA WN

BB DS DB DWW WWWWWWWNNNNNNMNNNDNDNDRN
O DWON-S>O0OO0CONOODNDE, N0 OO~NOOOARADEWN-=O

of the County unless the Board determines otherwise;

2, to employ or engage the services of agents,
independent contractors, and employees;

3. to acquire, construct, manage, maintain and operate
any buildings, works, improvements, equipment, or other real or
personal property (whether tangible or intangible);

4. to acquire, hold, lease, or dispose of property;

5. to incur debts, liabilities or obligations, provided the
same shall be obligations of the County, with the only financial
obligations of the Parties being as set forth in Section 6 or Section
10 hereof (or at the option of the Parties, as set forth in Section 8
hereof); :

6. to receive gifts, Assessments and donation of property
and funds, services and other forms of financial assistance, from
persons, firms and corporations and any governmental entity;

7. to provide or contract for communications services to
or with non-public agencies or other entities not a Party hereto;

8.  to carry out the policies of the Board.

Such powers shall be exercised in the manner provided in the Act and as expressly
set forth in this agreement. The County shall not carry out any activities contrary to the
authority reserved to the Board in Section 4C hereof, or as otherwise expressly reserved
to the Board herein but it is further understood that the Board's sole authority in regard to
the System is as set out in Section 4C, or as otherwise expressly reserved to the Board
herein.

The County is hereby authorized to exercise its powers as needed to implement
the purposes of this agreement. The County is empowered and by this agreement
authorized to assess the Parties to finance the entire operation and maintenance of the
System in the manner set forth in this agreement.

B. ‘Communication Services to Other Agencies

Upon the approval and recommendation of the Board of Directors, the County may
provide dispatch or other communication services to private agencies and/or public
agencies not a Party to this agreement, so long as there is no degradation of services to
the public health and/or safety. Such service shall be evidenced by contract or interlocal
government agreement.




0O~NO R WN =

A AR BA DA DB DB B WLWOWWWWWWWWMNRNNNNNDDNDRNRNDRN=S 2 A
~N oo gk, WON=2 0 00N WN-=20 00N WN-=2O0O©ONOOBWN-2O WO

The County shall establish the amount of charge for the service. Charges will be
set with the intent of recovering all capital, operational, and maintenance costs expended
in providing the services to a particular agency, both annually and for prorated periods
thereof.

C. Authority of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors, as the governing and administrative body of the System,
shall exercise the following authority:

—1. The Board shall recommend the annual System budget
and provide a copy of the proposed budget to the Cities and the
County by each May 1 for the following fiscal year beginning each
October 1, provided, the final budget shall be adopted by the County.
In that regard, should any member of the Board request the same,
the Board shall recommend an annual System budget by vote of a
majority in interest (in the same manner referred to in Section
103.F.7) and not by a per capita vote.

_— 2. The Board shall review System expenditures.

—_— 3. The Board shall consider the recommendations of the
RBO.

4, The County Judge shall appoint the System Director.
In making the appointment of the System Director, the County Judge
may shall seek advice and counsel from the Board.

54 The Board shall approve the provisions of
communications services to any entities not a Party to this
agreement, provided, the County shall ultimately approve the same
and be the contract party for such agreements.

D. Advisory Authority of the RBO

The RBO shall review all Standard Operational Procedures (SOP), programs and
situations and make recommendations as they pertain to the dispatch of police, fire and
EMS services. If applicable, the RBO will consider User Committees’ recommendations.
At the request of the Board or the System Director, the RBO shall respond to requests for
information, research and investigations.

E. User Committees

User Committees members and chairs will be appointed by the RBO Board. The
Committees will be open to personnel directly employed by agencies represented in this
agreement, and will be representatives of the particular discipline being considered by
that committee. User Committees will make recommendations on proposed SOP.

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Cemmunications-System-Agreement-redline-2005-t0-2021-
{002)Cammunications-System-Agreement-redline 2005-t0-202 . deexCommunications-Agreement 042221 -draft TE -13-




0 ~NO O WwN =

b DB BB DD DR DB WWWWWWWWWWMNMNNNDRNRNDNRNNDNRLD-=S 4 a2
© o0 ~NOO PR, WN-=- 0 000 ~NOORWN-=2O0OONOODAORAWN-=OOOONOOBAWN--=O ©

User Committees should be comprised of individuals with expertise or experience in that
discipline. The System Director or his designee shall be a member of each Committee.

F. Member Duty to Notify of Protocol Changes

All members have the right to change, alter, or otherwise modify their respective
protocols relating to any matter associated with the operation and response of their first
responder agency. However, with respect to any changes, alterations, or modifications
that have the potential to impact event counts attributable to that member, said member
shall notify the Director within 7 days of any changes, alterations, or modifications. The
Director shall then notify all the members within 7 days.

Section 5. Facility

The County is empowered to purchase, lease or otherwise obtain the use of an
existing facility or build a new facility for the purposes of locating and establishing the
consolidated communications center, all at the County's expense. The center proper
shall include at least the following: (1) dispatch area; (2) supervisors and management
administrative offices, including Director, operational and technical managers, clerical,
computer resource and reception office space; (3) radio equipment room; (4) computer/
telephone/recording equipment room; (5) storage for inventory, supplies and records; (6)
locker room; (7) bathroom/shower facilities; (8) kitchen; (9) lunch/break room; (10) multi-
purpose classroom, conference room and emergency operations center.

All equipment and materials within the facility will be supported and maintained
through an annual operational budget. All new equipment or materials used as part of
the "System" will be owned as set forth Section 8.

The Parties agree that this shall not be a contract for the financing or acquisition
of any of the assets comprising the System, including the center.

Section 6. Fiscal Year and Annual Budget
A. Fiscal Year

The System's fiscal year shall be the twelve month period commencing each
October 1, and ending the following September 30,-execept-if the-effective-date-of this
agreementis-other than-October-1-in-which-case the first fiscal year-shall-be-the-short
year-commencing-the-effective date and ending the following September-30-.

B. Annual Budget

1, The System shall operate only under an approved
fiscal year budget. The System may not operate at a deficit. The
Parties shall pay for the entire costs of operation and maintenance
of the System, with annual System expenditures determining the
total amount of assessment required.

-2. From the date of this Agreement through the end of
fiscal year ending September 30, 20072020, the assessments and

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Cemmunications-Systerm-Agreementredline-2005-te-2021—
(e02}Cemmunieations-System-Agreement-redline-2005-to- 202 -doexCommunications-Agreement-042221-draft TE -14-




O ~NO O WN =

BB BB DA DB BA DB BB WWWWWWWWWWNMNMNNRNRNMNDODNNDEN=S 2 A A a0
© 00 NP WN=2000~NDGBRRWON=2000NIARWCN-=00OO~NOOOAWN-=2O O©

Assessments shall be as set forth in Exhibit "B".

- 8 Each annual operating budget shall include a
reasonable reserve contingency. Money may be expended from
this reserve only with the express approval of the County. The
unspent portion of the reserve shall be carried forward to the next
fiscal year (in addition to the reserve Assessment for each such fiscal
year). The Auditor shall periodically report to the Board on the
amount on deposit in such fund, how the same is invested, and how
it is being expended.

e’ | The total assessment against each of the Parties will

be reduced by revenue from entities not a party hereto (i.e., not
otherwise expensed to serve the System), by unexpected or
unencumbered funds available at the end of each fiscal year prior to
the year for which the budget is applicable, or by other revenues
available to the System (in excess of amounts required by the
budget) as of the date such budget is determined. In that regard,
the Parties acknowledge that the County shall have the right to deny
service to entities other than the Cities unless such entities agree to
pay a share of System assessments. In that event, before any such
entity becomes a "Party" hereto, the same shall require those
approvals referred to in Sections 13 and 14 hereof.

—— In the event that emergency expenditures are required

to maintain System integrity in excess of amount budgeted therefore,
the County is authorized to incur the same first from the reserve, and
second from other funds available to the County. The budget for the
next fiscal year shall include amounts to restore such reserve fund,
or to reimburse the County for any unreimbursed expenditures,
respectively.

6. The budget shall be recommended to the County for

each fiscal year on or before JuneMay 15! prior to the beginning of
such fiscal year. A copy of the System budget and each Party's
assessment shall be delivered to each Party immediately after the
System budget is adopted.

7T Notwithstanding that the County is solely responsible
to pay all Capital Costs each year's System budget shall state those
Capital Costs the County anticipates it will incur during the same
following budget year.

For the purposes of this agreement, “Capital Costs” shall mean all

costs incurred by the County for assets having a useful life of longer
than one year from the date of acquisition and have a dollar value
greater than $100,000 or that are associated with the communication
center building or backbone, regardless of the dollar value. The
backbone consists of the server room, the equipment at the tower

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Cemmunications-System-Agreementredline 2005-to-2021 -

(8o Cemmunieations-System-Agreementredline 2005-to-2021.doexCommunications-Agreement 04222 -draft- TE -15-



0O ~NO OB WN -

£ B DA D DD DR DB WOWWWWWWWWWNRNNDNDRNDRNRNDRNNMNRLDN=2 2 8 3 3
0N A ON=20 00N WN-=20OOO~NOOORMAWN-=200OCO~NOOODO A WRN-= O ©

sites and the symphony consoles. Examples of building and
backbone assets include, but are not limited to, HVAC, UPS, parking
lots and dispatch consoles.The County shall determine which costs
are “Capital Costs” which benefit the System in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

[o]

The Parties hereby agree that payment of the assessments shall
fairly compensate the performing Parties (including the County) for
the services or functions performed hereunder, as provided in the
Act.

- 89.  As provided in Section 4.C.1, the System budget for
each fiscal year must be recommended by the System Board, but be
finally approved by the County. In that regard, the County shall
have discretion to follow its normal budget process as it would for
any unit of County government, including the authority to adopt the
final budget notwithstanding contrary recommendations of the
Board. The County may make adjustments to the budget during any
year if required to maintain System integrity.

C. Budget Elements

- Each Party hereby agrees to pay an amount equal to its Assessment, as
based upon the assessment percentages as described in Exhibit “B.”

The County shall be responsible for all capital expenditures, as may be
necessary to accomplish the purposes set forth in this Agreement for a consolidated
communications system.

4. Payment of Assessments

———————————Upon adoption of the fiscal year budget by the County {with
the-first-budget-anticipated-to—take—affect with-the fiscal year beginning
October1,-2002; and the forwarding thereof to the governing bodies of the
Parties by the Board Secretary, unless otherwise specified by the order of
the Board, the AssessmentAssessments as described in Exhibit “B" isare
automatically due and payable without further notice as follows:

————QOctober 15 25% of total Assessment
——January 15 25% of total Assessment
—April 15 25% of total Assessment

—July 15 25% of total Assessment

In the event funds are not available as needed, the County
shall advance necessary funds as with any other division of County
government.

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Eemmunications-System-Agreement redline 2005-to-2021—
toe2communications-System-Agreementredline-2005-to-202 - deexCommunications-Agreement 04222 -draft TE -16-




0O ~NO Ok WN =

£ B DB DB DB DWW WWWWMWWWWMNMNNRNDNDNRNRNRNDRN=S 2 O A
Dk WON-= OO0 ~NOOOPRERWN-=2OOWONOOAORAWON-=20O000~NOOOGODAWN=OO©

Amounts advanced by the County shall be deemed System expenditures,
to be reimbursed by all Parties in the next assessment due after each such
advance is made.

Assessments shall be payable only from current revenues of
each Party, as provided in the Act. Each Party agrees to provide in its
annual budget for current revenues to be available in an amount adequate
for that Party's Assessment for the same fiscal year.

At least annually, the Director shall present a cost of service study to the
Board showing annual System costs as compared to budgeted line items.

A five (5)% late charge shall be imposed upon Assessment payments not
received within thirty (30) calendar days following the scheduled dates for
payment. An additional five (5)% shall be imposed if payment is not made
within an additional thirty (30) calendar days. If aan Assessment, including
late charges, is not paid in full within seventy-five (75) calendar days
following any scheduled due date, the Party shall be in default and subject
to termination upon the vote of a majority in interest (determined in
accordance with Section 6-8:23.F.7) of the other members on the Board.
The late Party shall not have the right to vote, or be counted in determining
a majority in interest.

D. Budget Authority of Director

The Director for the System has the power fully to implement the approved budget.
However, the Director may not exceed the personnel staffing authorized in the budget,
either in number, position, classification or salary. In addition, the Director may not
exceed any line item, utilize the reserve contingency, or exceed the total amount of
approved budgeted expenditures without the approval of the County.

The Director may recommend expenditures for approval separate from the budget
process, in which case the further recommendation of the Board and approval by the
County is required prior to any actual expenditure. The Director may also seek
authorization from the Board, and subsequently the County, for budgetary transfers or
budget adjustments as necessary.

Section 7. Personnel

A. Director

The Director is authorized to act on the behalf of the Board and the County in all
matters of personnel administration, given the positions and funding authorized by the

County in the annual System budget. This includes, but is not limited to, hiring,
supervisory direction, performance evaluations, disciplinary actions and terminations.

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Cemmunications-System-Agreementredline-2005-to-2021—
{002}Communications-System-Agreementredline-2005-to-2021-doexCommunications-Agreement 042221 draft TE -17-




o ~NO bR WN =

b BABABA DS DB DR WWOWWWWOWWWWNNRNDDNNDRNRNRNDNRNRNDN-S 2 A A a a
0O NO O OWN=2000~NOOOPRWN=20OCONDDOBEAWN-=20OO~NOOOEWRN-=O ©

The County shall establish employment conditions and regulations, including
policies and procedures. Insofar as the staff will be County employees, the Personnel
Handbook shall be consistent with County employment policies.

System personnel shall be subject to grievance or other personnel procedures
applicable to County employees.

B. Supervisory and Operations Positions

The County shall employ supervisory and operations staff as approved in each
System budget. All such persons shall be employees of the County. All positions must
be recommended by the Board as part of the System budget process, and provided for
in the annual System budget adopted by the County. The County may utilize the
services of the personnel director of any of the Parties to create any needed class
specifications, job descriptions, or address other personnel matters.

C. Salaries and Benefits

The Board shall recommend, and the County shall determine, the salaries of the
System staff as part of the budget process. Employee benefits shall be determined in
accordance with the County's employee benefit plan for persons making such salaries.

Section 8. Capital Assets and Acquisitions

Except as provided below, this agreement shall not be construed to require sharing
of any capital costs whatsoever. The Parties intend:

1.

£ ————1.——teTo share the costs of operating and maintaining
the System, but

2.— _The County shall be responsible for system capital costs, save and
——except capital systemSystem improvements initiated by any other

party.

The County shall acquire and be the owner of the initial System, provided, the City
of Temple shall acquire and own the initial Intergraph Public Safety Contract and related
assets (with such assets and contract to be dedicated exclusively to the System, and to
be a part of the System throughout the term of this agreement). Thereafter capital assets
shall be acquired in the name of, and at the expense of the Cities or the County, as each
such purchasing Party shall determine from time to time. No new capital assets will be
acquired which would not be compatible with the System at the time of acquisition.

The County will determine what communications equipment is necessary to
operate and maintain the System-—_and be responsible for any equipment expense with
a dollar threshold of more than $100,000 or that is part of the communication center
building or backbone.

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Cemmunications-System-Agreementredline-2005t0-2021—
(o02}Cemmunications-System-Agreementredline-2005-to-2021-docxCommunications-Agreement 04222 -draft TE -18-




N Ok WwWwN =

oA A B DB DD DD RO WWW MWW WWWNRNRNRNNRNRNRMNMRMBMNS A a2 a a4
© O ~NODORON 2000 BEON 20000 S~WNS2OOO®~NDO BWRN = O ©

Each Party shall have the right to add components (the "Separate Components")
to be used by such Party along with the System, but such Separate Components (a) shall
not be part of the "System" (i.e., not subject to the terms hereof) unless all Parties agree,
and (b) must be compatible with the remainder of the System.

All System Components must be approved by the System Director to confirm
compatibility with the System prior to eonnestion-te-the systempurchase of the same.

Section 9. Term of Agreement

This agreement shall be effective from the date of execution and shall extend to
September 30, 20072025. This agreement shall continue in full force and effect
thereafter, provided any Party may withdraw on two years notice as provided in Section
10 B, or a Party may be terminated as provided in Section 10 A.

Withdrawal or termination of any Party shall not have the effect of terminating this
agreement as to the remaining Parties. Should a Party withdraw or be terminated, the
Assessment percentages of the remaining Parties shall be adjusted to take into account
such withdrawal or termination.

Section 10. Termination or Withdrawal
A. Termination

Each Party shall remain a Party to this agreement and share in the costs of
operation and maintenance of the System until the end of the Term applicable to such
Party (being the latter of (a) September 30, 20072025, or (b) the period which is two years
after such Party gives written notice of withdrawal). If, in the interim, a Party defaults on
payment of any Assessment, or otherwise breaches this agreement, such Party shall be
subject to termination as a Party to this agreement upon the vote of a majority in interest
(determined in the same percentage as set forth in Sections 6.B.2Section 3.F.7) of the
other Parties. The breaching Party shall not be entitled to vote on its own termination,
or be counted in determining a majority in interest. The terminated Party shall remain
liable for any defaulted payment and late charges for the period ending on the last day of
the fiscal year after the fiscal year in which the breach occurred. Such subsequent
Assessments will be determined as if the terminated Party were still a Party to the
agreement at the same Assessment rate in effect at the date of termination. The
Assessment will be due and payable at the same time Assessments are due from the
remaining Parties for the fiscal years in question.

The remaining Parties shall attempt to mitigate the damages caused by termination
by either obtaining other "Parties" hereto, or by reducing System expenses, but until any
mitigation actually occurs the terminated Party shall remain liable for its assessment in
full for the remainder of the termTerm. The type of activities to be taken in mitigation
shall be determined in the sole discretion of the remaining Parties.

All Parties agree that the System is configured, and System expenditures are
committed, on the understanding that all Parties will remain "Parties" at least until the end

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Cemmunications-System-Agreementredline-2005-t0-2021—
{e02)Cemmunications-System-Agreementredline 2005 to-2021-doexCommunications-Agreement-042221-draft TE -19-




O < SUP] O WL S G
O ~NO P WN-=20 00 ~NOOOPA~AWN-—=

19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
| 46
47
48
49

of the Term, and that the payments to be made hereunder represent reasonable
liquidated damages and not a penalty.

B. Withdrawal

A Party may give notice of withdrawal as a Party to this agreement without penalty
provided such withdrawal shall not be effective prior to September 30, 20072025, and
withdrawal shall be effective only upon two (2) year's written notice to the other Parties.
Such withdrawing Party shall perform all obligations under this agreement until the
effective date of withdrawal.

C. Legal Redress

The County shall have the right to seek legal redress, if necessary, to obtain
payment on amounts due, or otherwise to enforce the terms of this agreement.

D. Use of System and System Assets
Upon termination or withdrawal:

_ 1, Any withdrawing or terminated Party shall no longer
receive services from the System after the effective date of
termination or withdrawal. The "effective date of termination” shall
be the end of the applicable period in Section 10A(i) or (ii). The
effective date of withdrawal is defined in Section 10B.

_ 2. The withdrawing or terminating Party shall leave as
part of the System (i) those assets owned by it, (ii) previously used
as part of the System, and (iii) which the remaining Parties desire to
use as part of the System. If the remaining Parties desire to use
any such assets, they shall purchase the same at the then current
book value from the withdrawing or terminating party. If such a
purchase occurs, an offset may be taken of (i) any amount owed by
the withdrawing or terminating Party hereunder against (ii) the
amount paid for such assets, said offset to be taken at the time of the
purchase.

Es Review of Agreement

A review of this agreement will occur annually during theeach annual budget
process-beginning-with-the FY 2006 budget.

Section 11. Dissolution

This Agreement may be terminated in its entirety only on or after
October1.-2007 ., and then only with the unanimous consent of the
Parties. Dissolution shall only be effective upon the last day of the fiscal year, but shall
in no event be effective until the requirements of Section 12 are met. Any individual
Party may withdraw as provided in Section 10 B.

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Cemmunications-System-Agreementredline 2005102021

{002}Communications-System-Agreementredline-2005-to-2021-decxCommunications-Agreement-042221 draft TE -20-




00 ~NO O WN -

B A B DS D DB DB DR WWWWWWWWWWMNNNNMNMMNMNMMNDMNRNRD =S 2 2 a2 a3 a A
NP, ON-=2000~NOOGRWN=20OONOOOBEWN=OOO~NOOONDEWN=O ©

Section 12. Disposition of Assets
A. Process of Winding Up

This agreement may not be terminated or disposition of assets made to the Parties
to the agreement until the County reasonably exhausts all means of collecting any monies
due hereunder, and identifies and satisfies all obligations and liabilities related to the
System. A final accounting shall be prepared by the Auditor, and be submitted to the
County and the Board and be approved by both the County and the Board, before any
final disposition of assets may be made and termination of the agreement consummated.

B. Asset Distribution

Upon termination the Parties shall retain title to those assets purchased in their
individual names. As to any capital assets purchased in common (as provided-in
Section-8); and as to any monies held in System accounts, such capital assets and
monies shall be distributed according to the relative assessments paid by the Parties
during the five years immediately preceding termination.

Section 13. Amendment to Agreement

The agreement may be amended only by a unanimous vote of the Parties hereto
as of the date of the Amendment. Any proposed amendment shall be formally directed
to the Board. The Board shall then review the proposed amendment and forward the
proposed amendment with its own recommendation to the governing body of each Party
to the agreement. A proposed amendment must be approved by the governing body of
each Party to be effective. The Secretary shall notify each Party of the resultant action.

Section 14. Additional Parties to Agreement

Entities which are not Parties in this agreement, may become Parties hereto only
by amendment to this agreement as defined in Section 13 and subject to the following
terms and conditions:

A. Buy-in

A new Party's assessment shall be determined by formula approved by the Board.
Any Parties incurring capital costs for the System (anticipated to be solely the County)
shall determine the capital portion of any buy-in fee for long term fixed assets used in the
System (capital expenditures) and associated debt attributed to the System at the time of
the buy-in. Payment of such capital portion of the buy-in fee shall be made to the Parties
which previously incurred capital costs for assets used as part of the System, in proportion
to the costs paid by such Parties.

The Board may determine as an additional component of any buy-in fee a charge
to be made for the new Party's assuming the use of the operating System.

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Cemmunications-System-Agreement-redline2005-t0-2021—
(002)}Communications System-Agreementredline-2005-to-2021-doexCommunications-Agreement 042221 draft TE -21-




o ~NO O wNN =

2 b b b bADbLH DA DA A DB OWWWWWWOWOWOWWMNNNMPDNRNONNDNRNRND=2 2 A QG aa aa
© o0~ P~ WON=0000~NOOOWN-=200CO~NIOTAORWN-220O0COENODOPBWN-=O®©

B. Effective Date

The effective date of the amendment to this agreement and inclusion as an
additional Party shall only occur on the first day of any fiscal year. Such public agencies
that become Parties hereto shall be entitled to all rights and obligations of "Parties" hereto
and may appoint one RBO Board member for each new Party and a representative to the
RBO Board as defined in this agreement.

Section 15. Street Use License

Each City hereby grants to the County a non-exclusive license to use the public
roads, streets, alleys, and rights-of-way of such City where the System is to be located.
This license shall be granted within each City so long as any Party is making use of the
System, notwithstanding the City granting such license may no longer be a party to this
agreement. This license is subject to any applicable City Charter limitations as to each
City. Each City reserves the right to oversee construction and maintenance of the
System within its City limits with regard to safety concerns or code requirements of such
City. Each City shall determine, in cooperation with the County, the location of the
System within such City. Such license is granted to allow, and limited to, all Parties to
this Agreement having authority to carry out the intents and purposes of this Agreement,
including but not limited to the right to install, remove, operate, maintain, modify, move
(but only with the consent of the City) or otherwise use the System. In consideration of
the public benefit to be derived by each City from the provision of the System, each City
agrees not to assess or impose any fee for any use of the System in furtherance of the
Agreement and in conformance with this limited license.

This license is not a franchise, nor is it intended to give any third parties (whether
profit or nonprofit) permission to lease, rent, purchase or access all or a portion of the
System for any purpose other than contemplated herein by the parties. Each City
reserves the right to require a franchise agreement from any user of the System not a
party to this Agreement.

Section 16. Severability; Compliance with Applicable Law

Should any part, term, portion or provision of this agreement, or the application
thereof to any person or circumstances, be in conflict with any State or Federal law, or
otherwise be rendered unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the remaining parts,
terms, portions or provisions, or the application thereof to other persons or circumstances,
shall be deemed severable and shall not be affected thereby. The Parties further intend
for this Agreement to be modified to comply with any applicable state or federal law
(should it be determined not to be in compliance), and to remain binding between them
as so modified. In particular, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the
Parties intend for this Agreement to remain binding against each of them notwithstanding
any legal requirement that would alter the term hereof, or change the way in which any
party is required to pay its share of assessments; (i.e., the Parties will remain bound
hereunder, subject to such modified terms).

In carrying out its obligations hereunder, the County shall follow those laws
applicable to Texas counties.

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Cemmunications-System-Agreement-redline-2005-t0-2021—
{002)Communications System-Agreementrediine 2005-t0-2021.doexCommunications-Agreement 042221 -draft TE -22-



0o ~NOO Ok WN =

=X
o ©

W W WWoWOoOoWwowaowMNNMNNDNDNNNMNDNDRNDND=2 =2 o a a aa
O ~NO O WN-=20O0O0~NOOORARWN=2O0OO©OLNOOO A WN =

Section 17— Fax-Exempt Bonds

—Fhe-Parties acknowledge- thatthe-initial- System-is-being financed with tax-exempt
obligations-ofthe County-and-the Cityof Temple,-and no-use shallbe made-of any-System
assets—which-would—cause—such-obligations—to-be"private-activity-bonds""arbitrage
bonds*-orotherwiseresultinthe intereston-such-obligations beingincludable-inthe gross
income-of the-holders-thereof for purposes-of federalincome-tax:

Section-18. Force Majeure.

(a) If for any reason of "force majeure" any of the Parties hereto shall be
rendered unable, wholly or in part, to carry out its obligations under this agreement, other
than the obligation of the Parties to make the payments required under the terms of this
agreement, then if such party shall give notice and the full particulars of such reasons in
writing to the other Parties within a reasonable time after the occurrence of the event or
cause relied on, the obligation of the Party giving such notice, so far as it is affected by
such "force majeure”, shall be suspended during the continuance of the inability then
claimed, but for no longer period, and such Party shall endeavor to remove or overcome
such inability with all reasonable dispatch. The term "force majeure" as employed herein
shall mean acts of God, strikes, lockouts, or other industrial disturbances, acts of the
public enemy, orders or actions of any kind of the Government of the United States or of
the State of Texas or any civil or military authority, insurrections, riots, epidemics,
landslides, lightning, earthquakes, fires, hurricanes, storms, floods, washouts, droughts,
arrests, restraints of government and people, civil disturbances, explosions, breakage or
accident to dams, machinery, pipelines, or canals or other structures or machinery, on
account of any other cause not reasonably within the control of the Party claiming such
inability. It is understood and agreed that the settlement of strikes and lockouts shall be
entirely within the discretion of the Party having the difficulty, and that the above
requirement that any "force majeure" shall be remedied with all reasonable dispatch shall
not require the settlement of strikes and lockouts by receding to the demand of the
opposing parties when such settlement is unfavorable to it in the judgment of the Party
having the difficulty.

(b)  No damage shall be recoverable from the County or the Cities by reason of
the causes above mentioned.

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Cemmunications-System-Agreement-redline-2005-t0-2021—
toe2jcemmunications-System-Agreementredline-2005-to-202.deexCommunications-Agreement-042221-draft TE -23-




O ~NO OB WN -

W W W WWWOWOWWMNMNMNMNPNNMNDNNDND=2 2 A A A A A A
0O ~NO O, WN-=20 000N PR WN-=20O0ONO®OORAWON-2 O ©

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this agreement to be
executed and attested by their proper officers hereunto duly authorized, and their official
seals to be hereto affixed, as of the day and year first above written.

The-City of Belton, Texas

BY:

The-City of Harker Heights, Texas

BY:

The-City of Killeen, Texas

BY:

The-City of Temple, Texas

BY:

Bell County, Texas

BY:

{oo2}Communications-System-Agreement-redline-2005-t0-2021.doex61B0896-BELL —Comparison-Communications—
Agreementdoex -3+ 51




O ~NO O WN =

T e e,
a B~ WN =0

Exhibit "A"

The System shall be comprised of the following:

(1) Communications Center building located at 708 West Avenue O, Belton,
Texas (referred to in Section 5 of the Agreement).

(2)  Fiber Optic Backbone.

(3) 800 MHZ radio system.

(4) Computer aided-dispatehAided Dispatch equipment: and software.

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Eemmunications-System-Agreementredline-2005to-2021—
toe2icommunications-System-Aareementredline-2005-t0-2021.doex61B0896-BELL —Comparisen-Communications—
Agreement.doex : e A-1




0O ~NO OB WN =

1 T o M % YR S U N R i GO T At
N = O O 0o ~NOO P WN=2 O ©

NN
B~ W

N NN
~N O O,

28
29
30

Exhibit "B"

”

(1)  Assessment percentages shall be determined based on the number of “Events
within the jurisdiction of each Party during the calendar year ending before the
applicable budget year. An “Event’ is (i) every dispatch of a law enforcement unit
to answer a call originating within the jurisdiction of a Party, and (ii) all law
enforcement calls (i.e., calls by an officer) from within the jurisdiction of a Party.
“Law enforcement units” include police, sheriff's department, Department of Public
Safety, constables and other law enforcement officials (but not fire and EMS calls).

As an example, “Events” occurring during the calendar year ending
December 31, 20022020 shall be used to establish assessments for the 2003-
20042021-2022 fiscal year._

(2)  The assessment percentages shall be applied to the actual System budget for the
applicable fiscal year. The budget figures below are examples only.

(3) The County shall pay as its assessment the (i) Bell County Base, plus (ii) its
percentage based on Events.

{(4}———TFhe-Assessments-shown below for-2002-2003-are-the-actual-assessmentsfor-that fiseal
year—AH-ether“Use- %" figures-are examples,-exeeptfor-the “Bell-County-Base’-

Estimated assessment percentages and County Base Assessments for fiscal years 2002-
2003 through-2006-20072020-2021 are as follows:

*actual events, subject to annual review

Law En-
2002- forcement
2003 Count
2019 Calen-
dar Year
As-
sess
men ¥Fro-
t posed
#] g
€Ba
sed
on Us-
Us- age
e age X _ Hsex2020-
FHY % 50% 2021 Budget
Belton I 2340308 196592 feta2a 0
HarkerH 1267 38420407 207317 161300

Communications System Agreement redline 2005 to 2021 (002)Cemmunications-System-Agreementredline 2005-t6-2021—

B4

Agreementdoex



6G19686:DOEX

Killeen 991

BellCo- = 270060 0.00
2003~
ENFTY #Use- Usex65%  New— 2002-Amt
Belten 028 6:03 182014 F06505:00
249 2073
Harker BL 1760
HHeight 824 894. 391,3
s 47 235-02.01
Bell-Co- - 3500 106133 0600
2004

871 3.55 3284
Belton 1 5 71.94

2047
4879
Bell Co 972 1,300
UseCou 28.1 14.0 952.1
nty 62 80 6
Bel-Co- - 4000 121205 6133800
B
ENTTY tUse- Usex55%  New— 2004-Amt



6G19686-DOCX

Femple 2056

+6:26 493006
894 270486
435:00 136457

BelCo- 162
Bell Co- -
100
2006-
Belton 028
HarkerH 1267
Kteen 3220
Femple 2056
Bell Co- 162
Bell Ce
BaseCo
unty
100.
Total 00

50.0

600

100.
060
00



Hark CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM

“Hei AGENDA ITEM #IX-5

FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER DATE: JUNE 8, 2021

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE _CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, CREATING THE CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE AND SETTING FORTH THE RULES FOR
AND THE DUTIES THEREOF, ALL IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE IMPACT FEE
STATUTES FOUND IN CHAPTER 395 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE AND
TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION.

EXPLANATION:

On June 1, 2021, the City Council had a workshop discussion on the requirement to appoint a
Capital Improvements Advisory Committee (CIAC) to serve in an advisory capacity to the City
Council throughout the impact fee update process. The CIAC will advise the City Council on the
land use assumptions, capital improvement plans, and impact fee rates.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

Staff recommends the City Council appoint the Harker Heights Planning and Zoning Commission
where at least one member who is a representative of the real estate, development, or building
industries, and one additional member from the Harker Heights extraterritorial jurisdiction to
comprise the CIAC.

ACTION BY COUNCIL:

1. Motion to APPROVE/DISAPPROVE a Resolution creating the Capital Improvements
Advisory Committee and setting forth the rules for and the duties thereof;, all in compliance
with the impact fee statutes found in Chapter 395 of the Local Government Code.

2. Any other action desired.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution




RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS,
TEXAS, CREATING THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE
AND SETTING FORTH THE RULES FOR AND THE DUTIES THEREOF, ALL IN
COMPLIANCE WITH THE IMPACT FEE STATUTES FOUND IN CHAPTER 395 OF
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE.

WHEREAS, Chapter 395 of The Local Government Code (“Chapter 395”) authorizes
political subdivisions to finance capital improvements associated with new development in
municipalities; and

WHEREAS, these statutes prescribe a process that incorporates the required methodology, the
procedures for public hearings, and the reporting components related to impact fees; and

WHEREAS, this legislation requires that a Capital Improvements Advisory Committee
(“Advisory Committee™) be appointed by the governing body to advise the City Council on
certain matters related to the procedures promulgated by Chapter 395; and

WHEREAS, the legislation further requires that the City Council adopt procedural rules
for the Advisory Committee to follow in carrying out its duties; and

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this resolution was passed was open to the public, and notice
of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all in strict
accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Harker Heights,
Texas, that the following appointments, assignments, and procedures be adopted in conjunction
with the requirements of Chapter 395:

Section 1. Establishment of Advisory Committee.

There is hereby established an advisory committee to the City Council named the
“Capital Improvements Advisory Committee”.

Section II. Membership, Compliance and Appointment.

2.1 The Capital Improvements Advisory Committee shall be composed of the
Harker Heights Planning and Zoning Commission where at least one member
who is a representative of the real estate, development, or building industries, and
one additional member from the Harker Heights extraterritorial jurisdiction. The
additional member to be named by the City Council.

22 The Chairperson of the Harker Heights Planning & Zoning Commission
shall serve as the Chairperson of the Advisory Committee.

23 The City Council reserves the right to appoint additional members

to the Advisory Committee if required to replace a member due to a resignation
or for any other purpose needed to fulfill the composition requirements of
Chapter 395.



Section III. Functions and Duties.
3.1 The Advisory Committee shall serve in an advisory capacity.
3.2 The Advisory Committee is established:

3.21  To advise and assist the City in adopting land use
assumptions;

3.22  To review the capital improvements plan and file written
comments;

3.23  To monitor and evaluate implementation of the capital
improvements plan;

3.24  To file semi-annual reports with respect to progress of the
capital improvements plan and report to the City Council
any perceived inequities in implementing the plan or
imposing the impact fee; and

3.25  To advise the City Council of the need to update or revise
the land use assumptions, capital improvements plan or
impact fees.

Section IV. Conduct of the Advisory Committee.

4.1 The Advisory Committee shall conduct Committee business only
when a quorum is present. In this case a quorum shall be defined
as not less than one-half of the Committee’s membership.

42 The Advisory Committee’s activities, scheduling, and conduct
should be as commonly prescribed in Robert’s Rules of Order.

43 The Advisory Committee shall meet at sufficient intervals to
accomplish the functions enumerated in Section IIL.

4.4 The Advisory Committee shall provide Committee Reports to the
City Council that include comments and recommendations
regarding Land Use Assumptions, Capital Improvements Plans,
and Impact Fees.

PASSED AND APPROVED on June 8, 2021, by the Harker Heights City Council.

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor
City of Harker Heights

ATTEST:

Julie Helsham, City Secretary
City of Harker Heights



	Agenda
	Consent Item V-1 
	Presentation By Citizens Item VI-1
	New Business Item IX-1
	New Business Item IX-2
	New Business Item IX-3
	New Business Item IX-4
	New Business Item IX-5

